
           

REGULAR WORK SESSION & MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL

March 28, 2017

ADDISON TOWN HALL

5300 BELT LINE RD., DALLAS, TX 75254

5:00 PM DINNER & EXECUTIVE SESSION
6:00 PM WORK SESSION

7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING
             

Executive Session
 

1.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation
with its attorney on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551,
Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to: 

Western LLC Letter of Intent/ Sky B&B 
Town Newsletter Email List

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase,
exchange, lease , or value of real property, pertaining to 

15003 Inwood Road 
 

Reconvene from Executive Session
 



2.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into
Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matter discussed in
Executive Session.

 

WORK SESSION
 

3.   Present An Update On The Midway Road Reconstruction Project. 
 

4.   Present And Discuss An Update Regarding The Les Lacs Lake
Poly Liner Concrete Edge Restrainer And Drainage Flume Repair
Project.

 

5.   Discuss Logistics For The Town Meeting On April 3, 2017.
 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

6.   Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 
fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

 

7.   Presentation Of A Donation From The Addison Legacy Foundation
To The Town Of Addison For Spruill Dog Park.



 

Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 

8.   Consider Approval Of The March 14, 2017 Regular Meeting
Minutes. 

 

9.   Consider Action To Allow The Mayor To Speak Before The Texas
State Legislature Regarding Potential Legislation Related To
Property Tax Revenue Caps.

 

10.   Consider Authorizing The City Manager To Approve A Final
Payment To Groves Electrical Services,Inc., For The Construction
Of The Les Lacs Pond Water Well Pump Rebuild ProjectIn An
Amount Not To Exceed $23,351.97.

 

11.   Consider Action To Authorize The City Manager To Approve
Change Order No.1 To Teague, Nall, and Perkins For The Midway
Road Reconstruction Closed-Circuit Television Investigation And
Analysis Of The Sanitary Sewer And Storm Water Lines  In An
Amount Not To Exceed $111,542.03.

 

Regular Items
 

12.   Present And Discuss The Town of Addison Police Department's
2016 Racial Profiling Report.

 

13.   Present And Discuss Addison Police Department 2016 Annual
Report.

 

14.   Present, Discuss And Consider Action On A Resolution To Approve
A Professional Services Agreement With Stantec Consulting
Services Inc., For Design, Bid, And Construction Phase Services
Associated With The Potable Water Capital Improvements
Program And Authorize The City Manager To Execute The
Agreement  In An Amount Not to Exceed $127,806.

 



15.   Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On The Site Selection For
A Relocated Playground.

 

16.   Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On A Resolution Approving
Amendment No. 1  To The Agreement For Grant Funding With
Addison Arbor Foundation And Authorizing The City Manager To
Enter Into An Agreement In An Amount Not To Exceed $47,500.

 

17.   Present And Discuss An Update On The Public, Educational, And
Governmental (PEG) Channel.

 

18.   Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On TCEQ Certification,
Additional Environmental Investigation, And Environmental
Documents Obtained By The Town Of Addison Relating To 5015
Spectrum Drive.

 

19.   Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On Strategic Planning And
Environmental Testing For Town-Owned Properties Located
Along The Cotton Belt Corridor In The General Vicinity Of The
Intersection Of Quorum Drive And Arapaho Road, Including The
+/- 5.6 Acre Site Located At 5035 Arapaho Road.

 

20.   Discussion And Possible Action Regarding A Review Of The Current
Transparency Policy And Practice.

 

21.   Discuss And Consider Action Regarding A Review Of Current
Council Ethics Guidelines And The Need For Process And
Sanctions.

 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.



 

Adjourn Meeting
 

 

Posted:
Laura Bell, 03/24/2017, no later than 5:00 pm
  
THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES.

PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST
48 HOURS IN ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.



   
AI-2150     1.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its attorney on a
matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to: 

Western LLC Letter of Intent/ Sky B&B 
Town Newsletter Email List

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease , or value
of real property, pertaining to 

15003 Inwood Road 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A



   
AI-2151     2.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider
action, if any, on matter discussed in Executive Session.

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A



   
AI-2132     3.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present An Update On The Midway Road Reconstruction Project. 

BACKGROUND:
On October 11, 2016, staff presented an update to Council regarding the Midway Road
Reconstruction Project.  During that presentation, staff recommended to Council several
design refinement options: a comprehensive geotechnical analysis of the road surface
and base and a complete closed-circuit, televised (CCTV) inspection of the sanitary
sewer and storm water lines.  The geotechnical analysis has been completed and staff is
ready to recommend a CCTV proposal to Council.  Staff will provide an update to Council
on both the geotechnical report and CCTV process. The design work is currently at 30%
complete.  A Council action item will follow during the regular agenda for consideration
to approve the CCTV inspection.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.



   
AI-2149     4.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present And Discuss An Update Regarding The Les Lacs Lake Poly Liner
Concrete Edge Restrainer And Drainage Flume Repair Project.

BACKGROUND:
On August 23, 2016, staff provided a Council update related to the four (4) separate Les
Lacs Pond projects. These projects were identified as:
  

Les Lacs Pond Water Well Pump Rebuild
Les Lacs Pond Water Well Transfer Piping System Improvements
Les Lacs Pond Water Quality Monitoring and Well Pump Operation Program
Les Lacs Lake Poly Liner Concrete Edge Restrainer and Drainage Flume
Repair

The first two projects are now complete, and the third is scheduled to begin in the
summer months. This item is to update Council on the Les Lacs Lake Poly Liner
Concrete Edge Restrainer and Drainage Flume Repair.

This project was initiated within the Parks Department and was to be funded using the
department’s operation and maintenance budget.  The goal of the project was to repair
the damaged portions of the lake edge that were failing (approximately 270 Linear Feet)
and a damaged drainage flume at Lakeview Court.

The project was advertised on BidSync on August 3, 2015.  The bids closed on
September 1, 2015 and only one (1) bid was received from Capital Restoration in the
amount of $69,819.  This bid exceeded the estimated project cost of $30,000 and was
scheduled for a re-bid.

The project re-bid was advertised on BidSync on October 20, 2015 with an increased
project estimate of $75,000.  The bid closed on November 10, 2015 and no bids were
received.

The bid specifications were revised to allow a contractor the ability to use an inflatable
dike system in lieu of de-watering the entire lake. Following the changes to the
specifications, the project re-bid  was advertised on BidSync on November 11, 2015.
The bids closed on December 1, 2015 and only one (1) bid was received from Capital
Restoration in the amount of $116,810.  This bid amount included the use of a portable



dike system to eliminate the need to de-water the lake.
 
Upon receiving the bid, Town Staff began coordinating the project with Capital
Restoration.  The contractor proposed the use of aqua-barrier cofferdams which required
the installation of steel pipes through the pond liner.  Staff rejected this method since it
would require puncturing the existing pond liner.  The contractor then proposed the use
of the Portadam system.  The Portadam sales manager determined their system was
not applicable based on the potential for the system to puncture the liner but
recommended the Town consider using a sandbag cofferdam system.  Upon
researching the sandbag cofferdam system, Capital Restoration determined that the
weight of the supersack sandbags could create additional cracks in the lake edge and
potentially damage the pond liner.  Based on the lack of available options for installing a
portable dike system, the contractor withdrew the bid.  The withdrawal of the bid was
accepted by Town Staff on March 24, 2016.

With no other bidders, Staff proceeded to draft a Request For Qualifications (RFQ) for
Engineering Services for the Les Lacs Pond Edge to look at other possible solutions.
The RFQ was advertised on BidSync on May 6, 2016 and closed on May 31, 2016.  The
Town received and reviewed two (2) RFQ submittals. 

The Town is working with the selected firm, identified through the RFQ, to develop a
proposal that will provide schematic level design solutions, preliminary construction and
maintenance budgets, and facilitate stakeholder involvement for Les Lacs Park pond.
The three development strategies to be studied include:
  

Option A: Remove and replace the pond liner.  Remove the existing concrete
pond edge and replace with a similar aesthetic solution
Option B: Remove and replace the pond liner.  Remove the existing concrete
pond edge and provide alternative edge options including, but not limited to,
natural pond edge, stone edge, and concrete edge.  This design option
should also consider additional landscape and aesthetic renovations for the
park.
Option C: Evaluate a holistic change to the park, and provide a design option
for a more aesthetic and/or functional purpose.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.



   
AI-2138     5.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Council

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discuss Logistics For The Town Meeting On April 3, 2017.

BACKGROUND:
Town Meetings are held twice a year in the spring and fall at the Addison Conference
Centre. This year, the spring meeting will be held on April 3, 2017 at 7:00 pm at the
Addison Conference Centre. The format of this meeting gives the Councilmembers an
opportunity to update the public on their liaison assignments, status of Town projects,
and other Town-related topics. The purpose of this item is to discuss meeting
logistics and for Council to give direction to staff on the schedule of events for the
evening and the order of the Councilmembers' presentations.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.



   
AI-2153     7.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Council

AGENDA CAPTION:
Presentation Of A Donation From The Addison Legacy Foundation To The
Town Of Addison For Spruill Dog Park.

BACKGROUND:
In March 2016, Town Staff presented to Council the concept plan and cost estimate that
was endorsed by the Dog Park Committee for the conversion of Spruill Park located at
4936 Marcus Avenue into a dog park. During the discussion, Council gave direction to
staff to wait until the next budget cycle to contemplate using public funds for the dog park
conversion with a goal to raise funds privately. To help achieve this goal, Post Properties
generously donated $40,000 to the Addison Legacy Foundation for the conversion of
part of Spruill Park into a dog park. The Addison Legacy Foundation is now presenting
this $40,000 donation to the Town. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.



   
AI-2145     8.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of The March 14, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

BACKGROUND:
The City Secretary has prepared the minutes for approval.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
DRAFT Minutes



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
 

March 14, 2017
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254
5:00 PM Executive Session
6:00 PM Work Session
7:30 PM Regular Meeting
Present: Mayor Meier; Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore

Hughes; Councilmember Angell; Councilmember Duffy; Councilmember
Walden; Councilmember Wilcox 

 

 

               

Executive Session
 

  1.    Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation
with its attorney on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to: 

Legal advice on appropriate responses to inquiries about
the ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park located within the
vicinity and east of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and
Ponte Ave., and Farmers Branch Creek.
Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban
Green Energy Cause No. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial  Court,
Dallas, County

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal
of a public officer or employee, pertaining to: 

Planning & Zoning Appointment 
Consider Approval Of A Resolution Appointing A
Member To The Planning & Zoning Commission To Fill

  



An Unexpired Term.
 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 5:00 pm.
 

  2.    RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will
reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters
discussed in Executive Session.

  

 
  Council recessed from Executive Session at 6:22 pm.

Councilmember Duffy moved to approve a Resolution appointing
Linda Groce to fill an unexpired term on the Planning & Zoning
Commission. Councilmember Walden seconded the motion.

Councilmember Wilcox stated he did not feel Ms. Groce was
properly qualified for the position because of a lack of real estate
experience.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes stated he served with Ms.
Groce in the past and believed she was qualified for the position and
fully supported the nomination.

Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten stated that he believed that not all
members of the Planning & Zoning Commission had real estate
experience that Councilmember Wilcox considered appropriate.

Councilmember Wilcox stated he wanted the record to show that
Ms. Groce contributed to Councilmembers Angell, Walden and
Duffy election campaign. Councilmember Wilcox stated the City
Attorney stated that practice is not prohibited in any ethical conduct
policies but he (Councilmember Wilcox) could not support the
nomination knowing that information.

Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten asked Councilmember Wilcox if any
citizen who contributes to Council campaigns is not allowed to serve
on the Planning & Zoning Commission.

Councilmember Wilcox stated that when the chance for quid pro quo
exists, he believes it was not a good idea or policy. Councilmember
Wilcox stated Council is held to a higher standard and he believed it
was not appropriate to be involved in votes where money has been
exchanged from one party to another. Councilmember Wilcox stated
he would not be able to support the nomination.

Mayor Meier stated he believed Councilmember Duffy removed a



qualified person from the Commission with his appointment of Tom
Braun in October. Mayor Meier stated Mr. Braun attended one
meeting and then resigned to run for Council. Mayor Meier stated he
interviewed Ms. Groce and asked her questions regarding her
experience and knowledge Town policies. Mayor Meier read from
his interview questions and the answers from Ms. Groce.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes stated in his experience, Ms.
Groce was always prepared and professional. He stated he felt that
the information shared by the Mayor should have been done in
Executive Session and not in the public arena.

The motion to appoint Ms. Groce was voted on 5-2 with Mayor
Meier and Councilmember Wilcox against.

 

WORK SESSION
 
 

  3.    Reception For 2017 Addison Citizens Academy Graduates.   

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

  Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and
Council Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

  4.    Present Certificates To The 2017 Citizens Academy Graduates.   

 

  Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 
fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

 



  There were no speakers.
 

  Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 
  Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes pulled Item #11 for separate

consideration. Councilmember Wilcox pulled Items #12 & #13 for
separate consideration.

Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten moved to approve Items #6-#10.
Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes seconded the motion. The vote
was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

Item # 11 (Water Master Plan)- Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes
requested more background information related to the Water
Projects Master Plan. Assistant Director of Infrastructure Jason
Shroyer stated while the plan is titled the "Addison Water Master
Plan" this document is not a master plan in teh technical sense. It is
more appropriately called a Water Infrastructure Assessment,
Evaluation and Capital Improvements Program.

City Manager Wes Pierson stated after further review, action on this
item is not needed. The item would serve as information for the
Council. Staff will bring pending projects for Council approval in the
coming months.

Item # 12 (Traffic Signal Components)- Councilmember Wilcox
requested information regarding technology integration within the
system for more smart city capabilities within the traffic system. Mr.
Shroyer stated this item was for replacement of existing equipment
that has met its' end of life within the operation. The monitoring
system replacement will need to come to Council for consideration
within the next 2-3 years and the new technology could be
addressed with that purchase.

Councilmember Wilcox moved to approve Item # 12 as submitted.
Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten seconded the motion. The vote was
cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

Item #13 (Vitruvian sign)- Councilmember Wilcox asked for
background information on this item. Assistant Director of
Development Services Charles Goff stated  In 2011, the Town
adopted a special signage district for Vitruvian Park. Over the
subsequent years, the Town has amended this signage district as



new phases of the development have come online. Vitruvian West is
the next phase and is currently under construction. At build-out,
Vitruvian West will include approximately 1,025 multi-family
apartment units and a 20,000 square foot amenity and leasing
center. As part of the amenity and leasing center, UDR is requesting
a pylon sign that would be an architectural extension of the building
and was included on the approved development plans for the
building. This would be the main signage element for this phase of
the broader Vitruvian Park neighborhood, creating a focal point at
the amenity and leasing center.

Mr. Goff stated the sign would not interfere with the sidewalk width.
The sign is specific to the location and approved only for that
location. The sign is 42 feet tall from base with backlit panels which
can change color within the sign ordinance guidelines.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes moved to approve Item # 13 as
submitted. Councilmember Angell seconded the motion. The vote
was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

 

  6.    Consider Approval Of The February 20, 2017 Special Worksession
Minutes And The February 28, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes.
 

  

 

  7.    Consider Action On A Resolution To Approve A Performance
Contract  Between The Town Of Addison And Vanilla Ice For The
Personal Services Of Musicians And To Authorize The City
Manager To Execute The Contract In An Amount Not To Exceed
$35,000.

  

 

  8.    Consider Action On A Resolution To Approve A Performance
Contract Between The Town Of Addison And Granger Smith For
The Personal Services Of Musicians And To Authorize The City
Manager To Execute The Contract In An Amount Not To Exceed
$45,000.
 

  

 

  9.    Consider Action On A Resolution To Approve A Performance
Contract Between The Town Of Addison And Gary Allan For The
Personal Services Of Musicians And To Authorize The City
Manager To Execute The Contract In An Amount Not To Exceed
$160,000.
 

  

 



  10.    Consider Action On A Resolution To Support House Bill 1427
Which Amends Section 41.005 Of The Texas Utilities Code To
Clarify That A Municipality May Regulate The Operations Of An
Electric Cooperative Through The City's Zoning Ordinance
Which Is A Permissible Public Health, Safety, Or Welfare
Regulation.
 

  

 

  11.    Consider Action On A Resolution To Approve The 2016 Addison
Water Master Plan.
 

  

 

  12.    Consider Action On The Purchase Of Traffic Signal Controllers,
Traffic Signal Lights, And Traffic Signal Backup Batteries, And
Associated Components; Renewal Of Traffic Signal
Software; And An Agreement For The Maintenance And Testing
Of The Back-Up Battery System In An Amount Not To
Exceed $79,655.

  

 

  13.    Consider Action On An Ordinance Amending Chapter 62, Signs,
Of The Code Of Ordinances By Amending Article VI, Special
Districts, Section 62-289 (g), Vitruvian Park, To Allow For A
Pylon Sign As Part Of The Vitruvian West Multi-Family
Development At 3737 Vitruvian Way.

  

 

Regular Items
 

  14.    Present, Discuss And Consider Action On An Ordinance
Appointing Thaddeus A. Iwuji As Alternate Municipal Judge Of
The Addison Municipal Court Of Record No. 1 And Approving A
Compensation Agreement To Perform Services As Alternate
Municipal Judge And Administer Oath Of Office. 

  

 
  Councilmember Angell moved to approve Item # 14 as submitted.

Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten seconded the motion. The vote was
cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

Mayor Meier then administered the Oath of Office to Judge Iwuji.
 

  15.    Present, Discuss And Consider Action On Acceptance Of The Fiscal
Year 2016 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

  

 
  Chief Financial Officer Olivia Riley introduced Kevin Kemp from



  Chief Financial Officer Olivia Riley introduced Kevin Kemp from
BKD, LLP, the audit firm who conducted the Fiscal Year 2016 audit
for the Town of Addison. Mr. Kemp stated the goal of the
independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the Town are free of material misstatement.
In addition to providing an overview of the Town of Addison CAFR
for fiscal year 2016, Mr. Kemp presented the audit report and
opinion on the Town's financial statements. Mr. Kemp stated BKD
has issued an unmodified opinion, which means that financial
statements are presented, in all material respects, in accordance
with applicable financial reporting framework. An unmodified opinion
is a clean opinion.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes stated bottom line was that the
"clean, unmodified opinion" is the best. Mr. Kemp stated from an
audit standpoint there isn't anything better.

Mayor Meier thanked the consultant and staff for the hard work.
Mayor Meier also thanked City Manager Pierson for keeping the
internal control in place and holding staff to those standards.

(Council moved on to Item #16. Mr. Pierson brought Item #15 back
to Council's attention for an approval motion after discussing Item
#16.)

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes moved to accept the CAFR as
submitted. Councilmember Wilcox seconded the motion. The vote
was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

 

  16.    Present And Discuss The Finance Department Quarterly Financial
Report Of The Town For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2016.

  

 
  Chief Financial Officer Olivia Riley presented the item to Council.

Ms. Riley gave the following highlights for the report to Council.
Overall General Fund revenues are up more than 7.0% compared to
the prior year, Sales tax collections are up approximately 9.3%
compared to the prior year and expenditures for the various
departments are in line with projections. General Fund transfers are
higher due to budgeted transfers to the Infrastructure and Economic
Development funds. Hotel Occupancy Tax revenues are about 2%
lower than last year, however expenditures remain in line with
projections. Utility Fund revenues are down slightly by 1.7%
compared to the prior year, while expenses are higher than last year
due to increase in scheduled transfers to Infrastructure and Addison
Groves Funds. Storm Water revenues are up slightly by 3.7%



compared to the prior year, while expenses are higher due to start
of construction projects.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes asked if staffing levels were
sufficient.

City Manager Wes Pierson stated staffing was always a moving
target. Mr. Pierson stated the numbers in the report have not
changed significantly.

Councilmember Wilcox asked about the status of hiring in the Police
and Fire Departments. Mr. Pierson stated both departments are
closer to being fully staffed.

Mayor Meier stated he would like to bring the Council's attention to
the hotel tax collection breakdown on page 15 of the report. Mayor
Meier stated all the hotels look to be in line with the exception of
Budget Suites. Mayor Meier stated the disparity between the rooms
at the extended stay hotel and the amount of tax collected is evident
on every report every quarter. He stated he would hope that issue
would be rectified soon to show the Town collecting the proper
amount of hotel tax for that location.

Council thanked staff for the hard work on the quarterly report.
 

  17.    Receive An Update From Staff On Environmental Documents
Obtained By The Town Of Addison Relating To 5015 Spectrum
Drive.

  

 
  Assistant Director of Development Services Charles Goff presented

the information to Council. Mr Goff went over the history of the
properties, listed throughout the documents as Tract 1 ( Former
Ashland Chemical Plant), Tract 2 (5015 Spectrum Drive) and Tract
3 (Town of Addison Right of Way). The Ashland Chemical plant was
located on what is today the southwest corner of Quorum Drive and
Edwin Lewis Drive. Currently a Springhill Suites hotel is located on
the west half of Tract 1 and the eastern half is currently vacant.

Mr. Goff gave the history of the TCEQ paperwork received.

In 1998, TCEQ gave a final certificate of completion through the
Voluntary Clean Up Program (VCP) for the property. In 2017 Town
staff at the request of Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes
requested and received the Phase II Environmental Site
Assessment and the Affected Property Assessment Report from
TCEQ that was used to make the land use determination under the



VCP.

In 1998 a remedial action report completed by Woodward-Clyde
showed the Ashland property (tract 1), 5015 Spectrum Drive (tract
2) and the Town of Addison right of way (tract 3) entered into the
VCP. This clean up included the removal of 1300 cubic yards of soil
on tract 1. Potential contamination of the groundwater migrated from
tract 1 was identified on tracts 2 & 3. A certificate of completion was
given in 2001 with the prohibition of residential use and prohibition
on exposure to and use of groundwater without pre-approval from
the state.

In 2014, W&M Environmental Group completed a Limited Phase II
Environmental Site Assessment for tract 2 (5015 Spectrum Drive).
This assessment included 10 shallow drilled borings, 3 groundwater
monitoring wells, yield testing and collecting of soil and groundwater
samples. The assessment showed the presence of contaminents of
concern including RCRA 8 metals, total petroleum hydrocarbons
and volatile organic compounds but concluded that the levels were
below the protective concentration levels and residential
assessment levels. This means that the presence of these
contaminants of concern were so low that they did not pose a risk to
public health or safety. TCEQ issued a certificate of completion
based on the results of the assessment and determined the tract
was acceptable for residential land use.

Mr. Goff completed his presentation and offered to answer
questions.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes asked if the Voluntary Clean
Up Program was considered a benchmark program. Mr. Pierson
stated it was a model program for the United States.

Mayor Meier asked if the property at 5015 Spectrum had undergone
a Phase II testing in 1994. Mr. Pierson stated no.

Mayor Meier asked questions regarding the testing on 5015
Spectrum Drive since 2014. Mr. Pierson stated staff was not aware
of testing done after 2014. Mayor Meier asked if remediation had
been completed at 5015 Spectrum Drive. Mr. Pierson stated it was
not done as it was not required by TCEQ. Mayor Meier asked if a
Phase I or Phase II Environmental Site Assessment had been
conducted by AMLI. Mr. Pierson stated staff did not know. The
assessment done in 2014 was done by the property owner. Mayor
Meier asked if testing has been completed since 2014 on the tract 3
or the Town of Addison right of way. Mr. Pierson stated not to the



staff's knowledge.

Mayor Meier then had a presentation of the timeline for the 5015
Spectrum property in relation to AMLI rezoning.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes asked a question regarding the
prohibition of residential in the first certificate of completion. Mr.
Pierson stated the VCP protects third parties from environmental
liability from the State of Texas. The VCP gives the applicant the
ability to chose what level of use to pursue. The highest level of use
is residential. In 2014, the property owner sought and was granted
certification from TCEQ that the property was acceptable for
residential use. 

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes asked if it was a fair conclusion
that the second assessment was done at the direction of the former
owner. Mr. Pierson stated the consultant was hired by the land
owner who turned the assessment findings over to the TCEQ who
would then make the determination on the approval for residential.

Councilmember Walden asked Mr. Pierson if TCEQ would do the
testing. Mr. Pierson stated that not that he knew of. He stated the
TCEQ would review the assessments conducted by the VCP
applicant's consultant.

Mayor Meier stated he wanted to make a motion. Mayor Pro
Tempore Arfsten stated the item was not posted for action. City
Attorney Brenda McDonald stated the Council could direct staff but
no formal motion could be made due to the posting language.

Mayor Meier stated he would recommend the following:
 
" Seek a legal and environmental expert review of all documentation
and information to assure us that the sites named in the reports are
safe for current intended use. The review should include but not be
limited to:

1. A review of all documents now in possession or reasonable
attainable related to the recently rezone residential site at 5015
Spectrum Drive to determine if any new testing is needed related to: 

A. previous testing that has been performed outside a date range of reliability.
B. to determine if any vapor intrusion has occurred and if so to what extent.
C. to determine safety to neighbors during the course of any construction on site
with respect to groundwater contamination or airborne risk analysis.
 

 2. Review and determination as to need of necessity of any



environmental testing or analysis or application to TCEQ to provide
clearance for future development at the site currently owned by
Addison in the area.

3. Determine if the former Ashland Chemical site identified as tract 1
in the Phase II report from W&M Environmental Group dated
February 19, 2014 has been sufficiently remediated to ensure no
other properties in the area are affected by leaching of chemicals or
groundwater dispersal from previous Ashland Chemical site."

Councilmember Duffy stated he didn't see the need for the
recommendation. Councilmember Duffy stated the Town has all the
approvals needed from TCEQ.

Mr. Pierson stated the assessment of the Town property will come
soon as it will be necessary with the upcoming Cotton Belt projects.

Mayor Meier stated he would like to see an item on the March 28
meeting to consider action on the recommendation.

Mayor Meier presented a video he wanted to show of responses
from the AMLI representatives from the February 14, 2017 meeting.
Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten stated he felt showing the video was
inappropriate because the public could view the video from that
meeting on their own time.

Council recessed the meeting for a break at 9:10 pm.

Council reconvened into the meeting at 9:18 pm.

Mayor Meier asked for the video to be played. Mayor Pro Tempore
Arfsten again stated his disagreement in showing the video.
Councilmembers Walden and Duffy agreed.

Councilmember Duffy moved to not allow the video to be played.
Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten seconded the motion. The vote was
cast 4-3 in favor of the motion. Mayor Meier, Deputy Mayor Pro
Tempore Hughes and Councilmember Wilcox against the motion.

Council discussed the need to bring an action item back on the
March 28 meeting for the recommendation provided by Mayor
Meier. The City Attorney will craft an item for discussion and action
for the March 28 meeting agenda.

 

  18.    Discussion And Possible Action Regarding A Review Of The Current
Transparency Policy And Practice. 

  



 
  Councilmember Duffy stated he would like to table Items #18 & 19

until further information can be provided by the Mayor for the items.
Councilmember Duffy stated he felt more information should be
given to the Council so all members can be fully ready for
discussion of the items.

Councilmember Duffy moved to table Items # 18 & 19 until
additional background information can be provided for each item.
Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten seconded the motion. The vote was
cast 6-1 in favor of the motion. Mayor Meier voted against.

 

  19.    Discussion And Possible Action Regarding A Review Of Current
Council Ethics Guidelines And The Need For Process And
Sanctions.

  

 
  Item #19 was tabled and direction given as stated above in Item #18.
 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



   
AI-2152     9.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action To Allow The Mayor To Speak Before The Texas State
Legislature Regarding Potential Legislation Related To Property Tax
Revenue Caps.

BACKGROUND:
Texas State legislators are currently discussing a number of bills that would impose
lower property tax revenue caps on local governments. These bills erode the ability for
local elected officials to decide the best way to finance the services that local
governments provide to local residents.

Senate Bill 2 and House Bill 15 have been filed and are moving through the legislative
process. It is important for State Legislators to hear from local elected officials on the
harmful impact to local governments that such legislation would have.

This item would allow the Mayor to represent the Council's views before Texas
legislators as needed. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.



   
AI-2131     10.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  

Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Authorizing The City Manager To Approve A Final Payment To Groves Electrical
Services,Inc., For The Construction Of The Les Lacs Pond Water Well Pump Rebuild 
ProjectIn An Amount Not To Exceed $23,351.97.

BACKGROUND:
On August 23, 2016, staff provided a Council update related to the four (4) separate Les Lacs
Pond projects. These projects were identified as:

Les Lacs Pond Water Well Pump Rebuild
Les Lacs Pond Water Well Transfer Piping System Improvements
Les Lacs Pond Water Quality Monitoring and Well Pump Operation Program
Les Lacs Lake Poly Liner Concrete Edge Restrainer and Drainage Flume Repair

This final payment relates to the first project.

The existing pump was installed in 1982 and minimal rehabilitation work was performed in 1992
and 2000. Preliminary testing showed that the pump was not pumping at its designed
gallons-per-minute rate. Installation of a new pump will provide a more sustainable flow of fresh
water into the pond.

Groves Electrical Services, Inc. was selected, by bid to perform this project. The project
included, replacement of the existing well pump, motor, and all associated piping, relocation of
the existing well electrical cabinet, and construction of a new masonry wall and gate.

The project included two change orders. The first change order was needed to adjust the
location of the new masonry wall to avoid several underground electrical components and
conduits. The second change order added a time clock to the well for control and extended the
existing irrigation system to accommodate landscaping near the newly adjusted masonry wall.
The total project budget for all projects is below: 

Les Lacs Pond Projects
Overall Budget

Project Name Budget Actual Cost
Les Lacs Transfer Piping $263,450.00 $190,325.00
Les Lacs Well Rebuilding $379,940.00 $310,100.70
Les Lacs Water Quality Management Program $154,932.00 $93,000.00

Total $798,322.00 $593,425.70



The project is now complete and we recommend final payment to Groves Electrical Services,
Inc. in the amount of $23,351.97. This project was budgeted for in the Stormwater Capital
Projects Fund.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Final Pay Application













   
AI-2133     11.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action To Authorize The City Manager To Approve Change
Order No.1 To Teague, Nall, and Perkins For The Midway Road
Reconstruction Closed-Circuit Television Investigation And Analysis Of The
Sanitary Sewer And Storm Water Lines  In An Amount Not To Exceed $111,542.03.

BACKGROUND:
October 11, 2016 staff recommended to Council several technical analyses for
the Midway Road Reconstruction project in an effort to find potential cost savings.  One
of these is the performance of a closed-circuit, television (CCTV) analysis of the sanitary
sewer and storm water lines.  The current scope of the Midway Road Reconstruction
project includes the complete replacement of the water, sanitary sewer, and storm water
lines.  The CCTV investigation and analysis of the sanitary sewer and storm water
system will allow staff to better understand the existing conditions of those systems and
whether complete replacement is warranted or necessary.  The analysis will also identify
if there are specific line segments that have failed or might fail in the near future so that
only those specific sections can be replaced.

Teague, Nall, and Perkins (TNP), the design engineer for the Midway Road
Reconstruction project, received four proposals from qualified firms who perform CCTV
investigations.  After reviewing those proposals, TNP and Town staff recommend Acme
Utility Inspection Services, Inc., to provide the investigation of the sanitary sewer and
storm water lines under Midway Road.  This recommendation is based on price and past
history of successful projects.  The Town has used Acme Utility Inspection Services, Inc,
in the past for other projects related to CCTV performance and their work has been
satisfactory. 

The footage from the camera work on Midway will be analyzed by TNP and a prioritized
list of line segments that need to be replaced will be provided to the Town for
consideration.  Because of the technical nature and the need for a Professional
Engineers seal, these services are classified as a Professional Service. 

The total cost for these services, including the assessment, is $111,542.03. Although
this service was not part of the original budget, approximately $430,000 remains from
the 2012 Bond Funds for this project allowing for this work to be performed within
budget. This change order will be a 5.6% increase to TNP's contract for design
services.  The work is expected to take approximately two months to complete.  Once
the work is complete and the findings are analyzed, staff will bring the information to
Council to discuss how to move forward with the Midway Road improvement.



RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Change Order #1 - CCTV Investigation



   

Page 1 of 3 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 

 
                                          Change Order Number: 1 
                   Project Name: Midway Road Revitalization Design 

Project Number(s):  
Project Manager: Will Barresi, P.E. 

Date: 3/14/2017 
 
A.   INTENT OF CHANGE ORDER 

a. Performance of CCTV inspection on the sanitary sewer and storm water lines along Midway 
Road in conjunction with the Bond 2012 project, and analysis of the resulting investigation 
information to confirm the extent of sanitary sewer and storm water lines requiring 
replacement/rehabilitation. 

 
 

B.   DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE 
a. The original contract did not include any provision for CCTV inspection of the Town owned 

utility lines, or evaluation of the condition thereof.  This change order includes CCTV 
inspection of approximately 11,000 L.F. of sanitary sewer lines ranging in size from 6” to 18” 
and approximately 11,000 L.F of storm water lines ranging in size from 18” to 48”.  It also 
includes the evaluation of these lines, to determine which, if any, lines may not require 
replacement as part of this project. 

 
C.   REASON FOR CHANGE 

a. The initial cost estimates for the project are much higher than the actual budget.  It was 
determined that there may be some potential cost savings if replacement of some of the 
utility lines can be avoided.  This additional work will allow for the evaluation of the utility 
lines to determine if portions of the lines can remain in service, reducing the overall project 
cost accordingly. 

 
D.   EFFECT OF CHANGE ON CONTRACT PRICE 

This change order will have the following effect on the cost of this project (see next page): 



   

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

Item Number/Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Price

Sanitary Sewer Lines - Cleaning (includes disposal)

6" - 8" Lines LF 8175 1.10$            8,992.50$          

10" Lines LF 4022 1.38$            5,530.25$          

12" Lines LF 1094 1.65$            1,805.10$          

18" Lines LF 1335 1.93$            2,569.88$          

Sanitary Sewer Lines - CCTV

6" - 8" Lines LF 8175 1.05$            8,542.88$          

10" Lines LF 4022 1.05$            4,202.99$          

12" Lines LF 1094 1.05$            1,143.23$          

18" Lines LF 1335 1.05$            1,395.08$          

Storm Sewer Lines - Cleaning (includes disposal)

18" Lines LF 1232 1.32$            1,626.24$          

21" Lines LF 1385 1.38$            1,904.38$          

24" Lines LF 1235 1.43$            1,766.05$          

27" Lines LF 220 1.82$            399.30$             

30" Lines LF 1013 1.93$            1,950.03$          

36" Lines LF 1241 2.75$            3,412.75$          

39" Lines LF 903 3.30$            2,979.90$          

42" Lines LF 3018 3.85$            11,619.30$       

48" Lines LF 641 4.40$            2,820.40$          

Storm Sewer Lines - CCTV

18" Lines LF 1232 1.05$            1,287.44$          

21" Lines LF 1385 1.05$            1,447.33$          

24" Lines LF 1235 1.05$            1,290.58$          

27" Lines LF 220 1.05$            229.90$             

30" Lines LF 1013 1.38$            1,392.88$          

36" Lines LF 1241 1.38$            1,706.38$          

39" Lines LF 903 1.65$            1,489.95$          

42" Lines LF 3018 1.65$            4,979.70$          

48" Lines LF 641 1.65$            1,057.65$          

Total for Line Cleaning 47,376.07$       

Total for CCTV Inspection 30,165.96$       

Total for Traffic Control (included in costs above) -$                    

Subtotal of CCTV Contractor Costs 77,542.03$       
TNP Effort for CCTV Contractor Coordination, 

ConditionAssesment, and Report 34,000.00$       

Total for All Items 111,542.03$     

Orignal Contract Amount 1,998,859.00$  

Total Contract Amount (Including Previous Change Orders) 1,998,859.00$  

Amount of the Change Order 111,542.03$     

Revised Contract Amount 2,110,401.03$  

Total % Increase/Decrease (Including Previous Change Orders) 5.6



   

Page 3 of 3 
 

E. EFFECT OF CHANGE ON CONTRACT TIME 
N/A 

 
F.   AGREEMENT 

 
By the signatures below, duly authorized agents of the Town of Addison and Teague Nall and 
Perkins, Inc. do hereby agree to append this Change Order Number 1 to the original contract 
between themselves, dated 10/28/2014 (insert original contract date). 
 
Teague, Nall, & Perkins, Inc._ 
Company Name 
 
 
5237 N Riverside Drive #100_ 
 
 
Fort Worth       TX                  76137_______________ 
City  State  Zip 
 
 
(817)_336-5773_     _______________ 
Phone       Project Manager 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Department Director 
 

 
Michael G. DeMotte, P.E.           ___________________________ 
Design Engineer’s Signature    Fin. & Strat. Services Representative 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       City Manager 

 
Copies: Design Engineer     Council Agenda: Agenda Date _______ 
 Department     (if applicable) Item Number _______ 
 City Secretary        Approved _______ 



 

 Fort Worth5237 N. Riverside Drive, Suite 100Fort Worth, Texas 76137817.336.5773 
           Dallas17304 Preston Road, Suite 1340Dallas, Texas 75252214.461.9867 Denton1517 Centre Place Drive, Suite 320Denton, Texas 76205940.383.4177 

Registered by the Texas Board of Professional Engineers, Firm No. F-230    Registered by the Texas Board of Professional Surveyors, Firm No. 100116-00 
 

 
March 14, 2017 

 
 
Mr. Wesley S. Pierson 
City Manager 
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010  
Addison, Texas 75001 
 
 
Re: Midway Road (Town of Addison Project No. IDS 15-01) 
 Contract Amendment #1  
 Condition Assessment – Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lines 
  
Dear Mr. Pierson: 
 
As requested by the Town of Addison, we are submitting this request for a contract amendment to 
the above referenced existing Engineering Services Contract for additional services as further 
described below.   
 
Task R: Condition Assessment – Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lines 
Teague, Nall, and Perkins, Inc. (TNP) via a sub-consultant (ACME Utility Inspection Services, Inc.), will 
perform Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) video investigation and documentation of the condition of 
the existing sanitary sewer and storm sewer lines within the right-of-way of Midway Road between 
Spring Valley Road and Keller Springs Road. This work is to be performed in order to provide the 
Town with a higher level of confidence regarding the potential need to replace existing sanitary 
sewer and storm sewer lines under the pavement/within the right-of-way of Midway Road, as part 
of value engineering efforts to reduce the cost of the proposed Midway Road improvements. 
 
As necessary, the lines will be cleaned hydraulically to allow for passage of the video camera. 
When possible, cleaning of the lines will be avoided in order to minimize costs.  Should mechanical 
cleaning be required, it can be provided as an Additional Service. All solids from cleaning 
operations will be retrieved (not disposed of downstream or into ditches, etc.). 
 
Detailed video logs will be kept and the locations of offset joints, root intrusions, sags, deformations, 
and other abnormalities will be recorded.  
 
The findings of the investigation and recommendations with respect to potential replacements of 
segments of the sanitary sewer and storm sewer lines will be documented and presented in a 
Condition Assessment Report. 
  
Compensation for the efforts associated with these Additional services shall be on a reimbursable 
basis, based on the number of linear feet of pipe, by diameter range, cleaned and/or CCTV’d. 
TNP shall invoice the Client for all direct non-labor and/or subcontract expense based on actual 
cost plus a markup of ten percent (10%). 
 
A summary of pipe sizes and lengths to be analyzed and corresponding maximum anticipated costs 
are presented as follows: 
 



Midway Road (Town of Addison Project No. IDS 15-01)              Page 2 of 3 
Contract Amendment #1:  Condition Assessment - Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lines 
March 14, 2017 
 
 

 
 
A summary of anticipated fees for budgeting purposes is presented below: 
 
Cleaning of Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lines (Reimbursable) $47,376.07 
CCTV Inspection of Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lines (Reimbursable) $30,165.96 
CCTV Contractor Coordination, Condition Assessment, and Report (Fixed Fee) $34,000.00 
Total: $111,542.03 
 
Budget associated with this Contract Amendment #1 will be added as Task R – Condition Assessment 
– Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lines. This will increase the Task R budget from $0 to $111,542.03. 
 
Except as noted above, the services included within the Contract Amendment are to be performed 
on a reimbursable basis, based on actual work performed. It is understood that the amounts listed 
above are for budgetary purposes only. Actual amounts invoiced may vary, based upon the actual 
quantities of pipe cleaned and CCTV’d. 

Item Number/Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Price

Sanitary Sewer Lines - Cleaning (includes disposal)

6" - 8" Lines LF 8175 1.10$            8,992.50$          

10" Lines LF 4022 1.38$            5,530.25$          

12" Lines LF 1094 1.65$            1,805.10$          

18" Lines LF 1335 1.93$            2,569.88$          

Sanitary Sewer Lines - CCTV

6" - 8" Lines LF 8175 1.05$            8,542.88$          

10" Lines LF 4022 1.05$            4,202.99$          

12" Lines LF 1094 1.05$            1,143.23$          

18" Lines LF 1335 1.05$            1,395.08$          

Storm Sewer Lines - Cleaning (includes disposal)

18" Lines LF 1232 1.32$            1,626.24$          

21" Lines LF 1385 1.38$            1,904.38$          

24" Lines LF 1235 1.43$            1,766.05$          

27" Lines LF 220 1.82$            399.30$             

30" Lines LF 1013 1.93$            1,950.03$          

36" Lines LF 1241 2.75$            3,412.75$          

39" Lines LF 903 3.30$            2,979.90$          

42" Lines LF 3018 3.85$            11,619.30$       

48" Lines LF 641 4.40$            2,820.40$          

Storm Sewer Lines - CCTV

18" Lines LF 1232 1.05$            1,287.44$          

21" Lines LF 1385 1.05$            1,447.33$          

24" Lines LF 1235 1.05$            1,290.58$          

27" Lines LF 220 1.05$            229.90$             

30" Lines LF 1013 1.38$            1,392.88$          

36" Lines LF 1241 1.38$            1,706.38$          

39" Lines LF 903 1.65$            1,489.95$          

42" Lines LF 3018 1.65$            4,979.70$          

48" Lines LF 641 1.65$            1,057.65$          



Midway Road (Town of Addison Project No. IDS 15-01)              Page 3 of 3 
Contract Amendment #1:  Condition Assessment - Sanitary and Storm Sewer Lines 
March 14, 2017 
 
 
 
The following items are assumed: 

1. No bypass pumping is required. If necessary, bypass pumping may be provided as an 
Additional Service. 

2. The Town shall provide access to sanitary and storm sewer lines. 
3. The investigation shall be completed using one mobilization.  If multiple mobilizations are 

required, these can be provided as an Additional Service. 
4. Only normal hydraulic cleaning is provided for (e.g. 1 to 3 passes with a jetter only).  If 

necessary, additional/mechanical cleaning may be provided as an Additional Service. 
5. Minor traffic control, consisting of traffic cones and signage, is included.  If the Town requires 

traffic control permits/traffic control plans, these may be provided as Additional Services. 
6. The Town will provide water for cleaning operations at no charge. 
7. The Town will accept water from cleaning operations for disposal (via sanitary sewer system 

and storm sewer system) at no charge. The Town will accept debris from cleaning operations 
for disposal. If desired by the Town, TNP can provide complete disposal of debris as an 
Additional Service at the rate of $180.00 per ton. 

 
If this proposal is acceptable to the Town of Addison, please sign the statement below and return 
one copy of this contract to my attention. Thank you for the opportunity to serve the Town of 
Addison.  We value our relationship with the Town and appreciate the confidence you have shown 
by selecting our firm for this project.  
 
Sincerely, 
tnp 
teague nall & perkins 
 

 
 
Michael G. DeMotte, P.E. 
Associate/Team Leader 

 
 
This contract amendment is ACCEPTED this _______day of _____________, 20____. 
 
 
 
Signed:       
By:  Wesley S. Pierson 

City Manager 
 

 



   
AI-2120     12.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present And Discuss The Town of Addison Police Department's 2016 Racial
Profiling Report.

BACKGROUND:
Article 2.132 (7) of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure requires the annual reporting
to the local governing body of data collected on the race or ethnicity of individuals
stopped and issued citations or arrested for traffic violations and whether or not those
individuals were searched. The department submitted its data to Del Carmen Consulting,
LLC for analysis and review to assist the Addison Police Department in reviewing the
data. The report presented verifies the Addison Police Department is in full compliance
with the state racial profiling statute regarding prevention policies, data collection and
reporting.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
2016 Racial Profiling Report

































































































































































   
AI-2121     13.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Police

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present And Discuss Addison Police Department 2016 Annual Report.

BACKGROUND:
The Addison Police Department has prepared an Annual Report for 2016. This report
includes notable events such as the design of the new police vehicles, promotions, and
community outreach events and a statistical review of the year. The report will also
include an update on training protocols in place (or to be implemented) for racial
sensitivity, violence de-escalation, and dealing with emotionally disturbed persons for
Police and Fire.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
2016 Annual Report - Police



2016

Addison Police Department

YEAR IN  
REVIEW



JANUARY
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

After the conclusion of a 
nationwide search for Addison's 
next Chief of Police, Chief Paul 
Spencer, was sworn in on 
January 26th. Chief Spencer has 
been with Addison for over 20 
years!



FEBRUARY
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

Captain Chad Hanson was 
promoted to Assistant Chief of
Police. Quarterly training was 
completed for all officers involving 
sexual harassment awareness and 
prevention, reality based exercises 
(force-on-force training) and felony 
traffic stops.



MARCH
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

The first Coffee with Cops was held at Original Pancake House on March 4. 
Promotions included Captain Mike Vincent, Lieutenant Blake Potts, and Sergeant 

Brad Jones. 



MARCH
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

Dispatch successfully transitioned over to the North Texas Emergency 
Communications Center (NTECC)!



APRIL
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

Chief Spencer attended part two of a 
Command Leadership course required by 
the Texas Commission on Law 
Enforcement (TCOLE) held at the Law 
Enforcement Management Institute of 
Texas at Sam Houston State University in 
Huntsville. Chief Spencer and Assistant 
Chief Hanson participated in a Body- 
Worn camera Summit on the subject of 
the impact of this technology on public 
safety.



MAY
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

The General Orders/Standard 
operating procedures review and 
rewrite was completed. The Harris 
Radio Project and SunGuard Record 
Management System projects were 
underway. Chief Spencer and IT Director 
Hamid Khaleghipour attended the 
International Association of Chiefs of 
Police, Law Enforcement Information 
Management Conference.



JUNE
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

The design for the new patrol cars was 
completed!  New exercise equipment 
was purchased for the new physical 
fitness program, as well as a new 
weapons rack in the Police Armory for 
increased security. The hiring criteria 
was also changed for officers to allow 
for prior law enforcement and military 
experience in lieu of a 4 year degree. 



JULY
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

Chief Spencer attended the Senior 
Management Institute for Police, 
Police Executive Research Forum in 
Boston, MA. Topics included 
organizational change and design, 
change management, ethics in law 
enforcement leadership, diversity in 
contemporary organizations, and fair 
and impartial policing and systems 
dynamics.



AUGUST
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

The Police department conducted a 
community meeting with its highest 
attendance of 65 people, and an 
Identity Theft seminar was held for 
the Addison Circle Homeowners. Police 
Officers and Firefighters welcomed 
students at Bush Elementary back to
school.



SEPTEMBER
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

The Police department held the third 
Coffee with a Cop at Dunn Brothers in 
conjunction with the Carrollton Police 
Department. Kara Curry, Addison's first 
dedicated Crime Analyst, was hired on 
September 26, 2016. This is the first step 
in achieving the goal of being a data- 
driven police department.



OCTOBER
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

Jail operations ceased on October 8 
and we are now fully using Carrollton 
for all detention services. This
consolidated service will save the Town 
approximately $250,000 annually. The 
joint Police and Fire Open House was 
held and was well attended by the 
community. 



NOVEMBER
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

The first Women's Self Defense class 
was held and was a huge success! 
Ceramic, rifle-rated plate carriers 
were purchased for all of our officers. 
The Jail Supervisor position was 
converted to an Animal Control 
Supervisor. Animal Control Officer 
Ryan Wies was promoted.



DECEMBER
H I G H L I G H T S

2 0 1 6

Dr. Alex del Carmen was hired to 
conduct annual audits and training 
regarding racial profiling data and 
collection processes. Officers 
participated in Santa Cop to pass out 
toys to families in need in several areas 
around town.



OBJECTIVES
2017

LOOKING FORWARD

Look for ways to be more effective
recruiting police officers and applicants 

Increase training for police officers in the
areas of diversity, de-escalation and use of

force 

Develop the new Crime Analyst position to
be an effective resource for the department

and Town 

Continue to work with Town Management
and the community to be visible,
transparent and proactive in our  

delivery of effective public 
safety services 



   

Addison Police Department 
 

Statistical 
Review 
 

2016 



 2 

2016 Major Crime 

UCR - Part 1 Offenses 

 
Offenses 
Reported 

Offenses 
Cleared 

Clearance 
Rate 

 MURDER 1 1 100% 

 RAPE 12 8 67% 

 ROBBERY 28 7 25% 

 AGGRAVATED ASSAULT 60 47 78% 

 BURGLARY 100 8 8% 

 LARCENY-THEFT 650 136 21% 

 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 90 10 11% 

TOTAL 941 217 23% 

UCR Part 1 Offenses: 

The Uniform Crime Reporting, or UCR, program was started by the FBI in 

an effort to develop a uniform system of reporting police crime statistics 

across the nation based on population.   

Part 1 Crimes are classified by specific guidelines breaking down major 

crimes into seven categories; murder, rape, robbery, aggravated assault, 

burglary, larceny-theft, and motor vehicle theft.   

These seven major crimes provide a standardized reporting system for the 

crime rates throughout the United States. 



 3 

COMMERICAL BURGLARIES 
 
 Unlawful entry of a business (non-residential) building with 

the intent to commit a felony or theft 
  57 offenses occurred 

RESIDENTIAL BURGLARIES 
 
 Unlawful entry of an apartment, hotel room, or house with 

the intent to commit a felony or theft 
  43 offenses occurred 

BURGLARY OF MOTOR VEHICLES 
 
 Unlawful entry of a motor vehicle with the intent to commit 

a felony or theft 
  273 offenses occurred 

THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLES 
 
 The theft or attempted theft of a motor vehicle 
  90 offenses occurred 

2016 Major Crime 

UCR - Crimes Against Property 

ALL OTHER THEFT 
 
 Attempting to or successfully taking property through de-

ception, fraud, or other nonviolent methods 
  377 offenses occurred 



 4 

Addison’s UCR History 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

MURDER 0 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 

RAPE 9 7 7 7 10 5 4 7 10 12 

ROBBERY 32 29 35 19 18 16 11 15 13 28 

AGG        
ASSAULT 87 54 46 69 50 51 35 44 42 60 

BURGLARY 185 142 142 105 117 84 129 83 104 100 

LARCENY 798 704 742 651 676 613 593 541 574 650 

AUTO 
THEFT 109 79 135 106 105 72 62 62 82 90 

           

TOTAL 1220 1016 1108 958 976 841 835 752 825 941 

TOTAL NUMBER OF UCR OFFENSES 

EACH YEAR 



 5 

UCR Crimes and Clearance Rates 

What do the Metrocrest’s 

crime and clearance rates 

look like over the years? 

 Carrollton has the highest num-

ber of UCR crimes committed, 

followed by Farmers Branch and 

Addison. Coppell has the lowest 

number. 

 Farmers Branch has the highest 

percentage of UCR crimes cleared 

by detectives, closely followed by 

Addison. Coppell has the third 

highest number and Carrollton 

has the lowest number. 

 For 2015, Addison has the third 

most crimes and is tied with 

Farmers Branch for the highest 

clearance rate. 



 6 

NIBRS—National Incident Based 

Reporting System 

NIBRS Categories—Group A 

 

 Animal Cruelty 

 Arson 

 Assault 

 Bribery 

 Burglary/Breaking and Entering 

 Counterfeiting/Forgery 

 Destruction/Damage/Vandalism of Property 

 Drug/Narcotic Offenses 

 Embezzlement 

 Extortion/Blackmail 

 Fraud 

 Gambling 

 Homicide 

 Kidnapping/Abduction 

 Larceny 

 Pornography/Obscene Material 

 Robbery 

 Sex Offenses (Forcible) 

 Sex Offenses (Non-Forcible) 

 Stolen Property Offenses/Fence 

 Weapon Law Violations 

GOALS: 
 To have a more comprehensive view of more 

types of offenses that happen each year. 

 

 Addison PD looks to transition to NIBRS and 

a new Records Management System in 2019. 

 

Pro’s of NIBRS: 

 NIBRS tracks 3 crime categories: Crimes 

Against Persons, Crimes Against Property, 

and Crimes Against Society (narcotics investi-

gations and other activities prohibited by so-

ciety’s rules 

 

 There are 2 types of offenses. Group A has 

the listed 22 offense categories on the left, 

which look at 46 specific crimes and their de-

tails. Group B (not listed) looks at 11 crimes 

that track only arrest data. 



 7 

2016 Major Crime 

An Introduction to LexisNexis Heat-Mapping 

How does Addison PD track crimes?  

 Investigatory personnel use a confidential version of Lex-

isNexis Crime Mapping, called Accurint, to read other 

agencies’ reports, see area-wide crime locations, and dis-

cover crime trends. 

 Goal: to drive data-driven policing straight into crime-

impacted areas and to make solving crimes easier with in-

formation from surrounding agencies. 

How can citizens see what crimes are happening and where?  

 Before 2016, RaidsOnline Crime Mapping was publically available. Very similar to Google 

Maps, this website plots a variety of crimes on a map so citizens can see what offenses are 

occurring in surrounding neighborhoods, in prospective towns, or across the United 

States. 

 In 2016, LexisNexis purchased the same crime mapping website. The new website is at: 

https://communitycrimemap.com 

 

What specific tools are available to use on this website? 

 Date Range:  Select a time frame of data (works best for 1 year or less). 

 Event:   Choose which offenses (Burglary, Vandalism, etc) to view. 

 Offenders:  See where Sexual Offenders reside. 

 Density Map:  Plot “Heat Maps” (areas of high and low concentration of offenses). 

 Agency Layers:  Pick which police agencies’ offenses/offenders to view or ignore. 



 8 

2016 Major Crime 

Where Are Area-Wide UCR Crimes Happening? 

Map includes Addison, Carrollton, Farmers Branch, and 

Far North Dallas (north of 635, west of 75) 

Hotspots include the Dallas Galleria (property crimes) 

and along major highways and tollways. This is likely 

due to a higher population density in those areas. 



 9 

2016 Major Crime 

Where Are Addison UCR Crimes Happening? 



 10 

Addison PD On Patrol: 

Dispatched Calls and Self-Initiated Activity  

 Total Time for 2016 Average Time per Call 

  DISPATCHED CALLS 3891 Hours 20:03 Minutes 

  SELF-INITIATED ACTIVITY 5822 Hours 13:25 Minutes 

   

                                   TOTAL  9713 Hours 15:28 Minutes 

What sorts of 911 and non-emergency calls are officers dispatched to? 

 Car Accidents 

 Minor/Major Disturbances 

 Loitering and Trespassing Offenses 

 911 Hang-ups 

 Burglary Alarms (Business and Home) 

 Welfare Checks 

 Traffic Hazards 

 Drug Investigations 

What sorts of self-initiated activity do officers markout on? 

 Vacation Patrols 

 Traffic Stops 

 Motorist Assists 

 Warrant Service 

 Investigating Alcohol Offenses 

 Community Policing Assignments 

 Park Checks 

 Suspicious Activity  



 11 

Calls for Service Locations 

Hotels VS All Other Calls 

Breakdown of Hotels Statistics 

 

 22 hotels 

 3989 rooms 

 Approximately 2 people per room 

 At 100% occupancy: around 8,000 people staying in hotels 

 At 60% occupancy: around 4,800 people staying in hotels 

 

 Addison’s resident population is around 15,000 people 

 

 9% of calls from service originate from up to one third of 
Addison’s total bedroom population  



 12 

Calls for Service Locations 

Comparison of Addison Hotels 

Adjusted for number of rooms per hotel… 

 Most crimes against property:  Motel 6, Comfort Suites, Radisson 

 Most crimes against persons:   Suites of America, Motel 6, Super 8 

 

*Regarding 2016 data only* 



 13 

Calls for Service Locations 

Residential VS Commercial 

Commercial Areas:  

 Includes business streets, intersections, 

parking lots, and uninhabited areas. 

Residential Areas:  

 Includes apartments, houses, neighbor-

hood streets, and apartment parking lots. 



 14 

Patrol Staffing—2016 

Breakdown of Patrol Shifts 

(Goal Staffing Conditions) 
 

 A & B Day shifts are comprised of 6 beat officers, 1 Officer in Charge, 

and 2 Motors officers. 

 A & B Night shifts are comprised of 7 beat officers and 2 Officers in 

Charge.  

 K-9 works a floating shift, partially on days and partially on nights. 

 Average number of patrol officers in 2016:   30 

PATROL 
 

Officers made 

1543 arrests 

TRAFFIC 
 

Officers issued 

2447 citations 

and gave 

3489 warnings 



 15 

Addison Police Department 

Criminal Investigations Division 

UCR Part 1 Offenses 

 Number of cases assigned:             703  

 Number of cases closed:               206 

 Number of cases suspended:             366 

 Number of cases still active:             131 

 Average time to close a case:             30.1 days 

What was the average caseload for a detective in 2016? 
 

Average number of cases assigned per day:   14.5 cases/day 
Average number of cases closed per day:   8.2 cases/day 

HOW UCR OFFENSES CLEARED 

STAFFING 
 

  10 investigators and 4 

other staff members handle 

an average of 261 cases in 

252 working days 

CASELOAD 
 

  3656 cases assigned 

  2069 cases cleared 

  1424 cases suspended  

  163 cases active 



 16 

Internal Affairs Investigations 

A Brief History 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Administrative 12 13 5 14 3 5 6 

Formal 9 4 3 5 5 2 5 

        

TOTAL 21 17 8 19 8 7 11 

NUMBER OF INVESTIGATIONS 



 17 

Animal Control—A Year in Review 

Issued 121 

Pet Registrations 

Don’t forget to register your pets every year!   

70 Pets Adopted 

In addition to other duties, an Animal Control 

Officer patrols Addison looking for loose or 

stray animals and responds to calls for animal 

services. Typical calls include: 

 

 animal bites 

 animal cruelty/abuse offenses 

 vicious or dangerous animals 

 injured animals 

 barking dogs 

 loose animals 

 stray animals 

 dead animal removal 

 common pet questions 

Completed 107 
Reports and  

Investigations  

NUMBER OF REPORTS/INVESTIGATIONS 



   
AI-2069     14.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss And Consider Action On A Resolution To Approve A
Professional Services Agreement With Stantec Consulting Services Inc., For
Design, Bid, And Construction Phase Services Associated With The Potable
Water Capital Improvements Program And Authorize The City Manager To
Execute The Agreement  In An Amount Not to Exceed $127,806.

BACKGROUND:
In 2015, Council authorized a professional services contract with Stantec (formally Bury)
to complete a comprehensive assessment and Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for
the Town's potable water system. 
 
The assessment, which was completed in early 2016, included a CIP plan that identified
26 projects that involve replacement or upsizing of existing waterlines.  The identified
projects were then prioritized using a risk-based methodology which includes
Consequence of Failure (CoF) and Likelihood of Failure (LoF) scores.  The CoF value
measures the impact that a particular water infrastructure component would have if it
failed. The Likelihood of Failure metric is used to measure the potential/probable failure
of any given water infrastructure component. 

Since Stantec developed the water assessment and are very familiar with the Town’s
water system, they were selected to provide the design services for the projects that are
included in the CIP.  This design services are for the first two highest ranking projects
according to the Risk factor. The highest ranking project is the removal of approximately
500 lineal feet of asbestos concrete water line that runs along Dooley Road just west of
the Addison Airport.  Asbestos concrete/cement pipe was used extensively in the mid
1900's for potable water lines because of its low cost and long lifespan.  It is no longer
approved for use as a potable water pipe and all existing such lines should be
replaced.  Even though the water is safe for drinking, we are proactively removing the
pipe and replacing it with currently approved pipe material.  The project design will
include the removal of the existing line and then replacement with polyvinyl chloride
(PVC) pipe, as well as rebuilding two fire service vaults and the associated roadway
repair. 
 
The second highest ranking project is the replacement of approximately 650 linear feet
of ductile iron pipe located just east of the Prestonwood Shopping Center on Belt Line
Road.  This project was identified as a high risk project due to a history of known issues
such as leaks and several major failures and the age of the existing pipe, which was
installed in 1979.  The design will include removal of the existing pipe and replacement



with PVC of 650 linear feet of pipe, services and associated roadway repair. 
 
The total cost for design services for these projects is in an amount not to exceed
$127,806. The total budget allocated in Fiscal Year 2017 Utilities Capital Projects Fund
for these projects is $625,000. That budget is intended to design both projects and
construct the Dooley Road project. The construction cost associated with the
Prestonwood Place project will be included in the Fiscal Year 2018 budget.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Map of Location of Projects
CIP Projects List
Resolution with Exhibits





No.
Project Type/Location Problem/Issue Solved Year Installed Infrastructure Age

Existing Pipe 

Materials 

1

Replacing 8" CI with 8" PVC Water Main 

(Greenhaven Village Shopping Ctr. @ 

Intersection of Marsh Ln and Spring Valley Rd)

Experience significant leakage, pressure 

issues and maintenance requests on this 

water line.

1970 45 CI

2
Replace 8" AC with 8" PVC Water Main (Dooley 

Rd)

Experience significant leakage and 

replace old asbestos concrete pipe 

sections

N/A N/A AC

3

Replacing 8" DI with 8" PVC Water Main 

(Prestonwood Place Shopping Center near 

Intersection of Belt Line Road & Montfort Drive

Experience significant leakage, pressure 

issues and maintenance requests on this 

water line.

1979 36 DI

4

Upsizing 8" CI to 10" PVC Water Main (Running 

N to S from Belt Line Road to George H.W. 

Bush Elementary School)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Head 

Loss (4'/1000') & Replacing old CI with 

new PVC

1965 50 CI

5

Replacing 8" CI with 8" PVC Water Main 

(Intersection of Beltway Dr &  Belt Line Rd - 

Beltway Office Park)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Head 

Loss (4'/1000') & Replacing old CI with 

new PVC

1973 42 CI

6
Upsizing 6" CI to 8" PVC Water Main (Lake 

Forrest Drive)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1969 46 CI

7

Upsizing 6" Unk to 8" PVC Water Main 

(Apartment Complex at NE Intersection of 

Addison Rd and Westgrove Dr)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
Unk Unk Unk

8
Upsizing 16" DI to 24" RCCP (Intersection of 

Belt Line Rd and Quorum Dr)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Head 

Loss (4'/1000')
1983 32 DI 

9
Upsizing 16" RCCP to 24" RCCP (in Belt Line 

Rd between Addison Rd and Quorum Dr)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Head 

Loss (4'/1000')
1979 36 PCCP

10

Upsizing 8" DI to 10" PVC Water Main Nar 36" to 

8" Connection (SE Corner of Village on the 

Parkway)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Head 

Loss (4'/1000')
1978 37 DI

11

Upsizing 6" PVC to 8" PVC Water Main 

(Shadowwood Apartments - Sydney Dr & Marsh 

Ln)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1976 39 PVC

Water Line CIP 

Project List



12
Upsizing Short Connection from 6" to 8" (North 

of Belt Line on Quorum)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Head 

Loss (4'/1000')
1983 32 DI

13
Upsizing 8" PVC to 12" PVC Water Main (The 

Wellington Square - Southern Edge of Addison)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1980 35 PVC

14
Upsizing 8" PVC to 10" PVC Water Main 

(Quorum Office Building #2)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1979 36 PVC

15

Upsizing 8" PVC to 12" PVC Water Main (Excel 

Telecommunications Service Center to Addison 

Rd)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1996 19 PVC

16
Upsizing 6" Unk to 8" PVC Water Main (Glenn 

Curtiss Dr & Addison Rd)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
Unk Unk Unk

17
Upsizing 8" Unk to 10" PVC Water Main (The 

Madison 15851 Dallas North Tollway)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1984 31 Unk

18
Upsizing 6" Unk to 8" PVC Water Main (Quorum 

Office Building #2) 

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1983 32 PVC

19
Upsizing 8" PVC to 10" PVC Water Main (Lateral 

off of Quorum Dr)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1979 36 PVC

20

Upsizing 12" PVC to 16" DI Water Main 

Connection Between 36" & 12" Main (South of 

Belt Line Rd on Quorum Rd)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Head 

Loss (4'/1000')
1985 30 PVC

21

New 8" PVC Water Main Loop (Excel 

Telecommunications Service Center to Addison 

Rd)

Exceeding Allowable Water Age N/A N/A N/A

22

Upsizing 8" PVC to 12" PVC Water Main 

(Millenium Phase 1 - NW Intersection of 

Arapaho & DNT)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
1999 16 PVC

23
New 8" PVC Water Main Loop (FedEx Store - 

4901 Airport Pkwy)
Exceeding Allowable Water Age N/A N/A N/A



24
New 10" PVC Water Main Loop (One Hanover 

Park Offices to Excel Pkwy along DNT)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
N/A N/A N/A

25
Upsizing 6" PVC to 8" PVC Water Line for 

Lateral (Off of Claire Chennault St)

Exceeding Maximum Allowable Velocity (7 

fps) @ 1000 gpm
2010 5 PVC

26
New 12" PVC Water Main Loop (APT. Complex 

in NW Corner of Town)
Exceeding Allowable Water Age N/A N/A N/A



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  THE  AGREEMENT  FOR
PROFESSIONAL  ENGINEERING  SERVICES  BETWEEN  THE  TOWN
OF  ADDISON  AND  STANTEC  CONSULTING  SERVICES,  INC.  FOR
DESIGN, BID, AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES ASSOCIATED
WITH  THE  POTABLE  WATER  CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENTS
PROGRAM  IN  AN  AMOUNT  NOT  TO  EXCEED  $127,806,
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE
AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the Town
of  Addison  and  Stantec  Consulting  Services,  Inc.,  for  design,  bid,  and  construction  phase
services associated with the potable water Capital Improvements Program in an amount not to
exceed  $127,806,  a  copy  of  which  is  attached  to  this  Resolution  as  Exhibit  A, is  hereby
approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 28th day of March, 2017.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-2130     15.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On The Site Selection For A Relocated
Playground.

BACKGROUND:
In September 2013, Addison was notified by Oncor that for safety reasons the Town
would need to remove the playground located in Oncor’s easement along Redding Trail. 
A year later, the Town entered into an agreement with Oncor that allowed a three-year
window for the removal of the playground.  September 15, 2017 marks that agreement’s
deadline.

During the Addison Athletic Club Master Plan Committee process in 2015, residents
asked where the existing playground could be relocated. Staff mentioned Dome Park as
a possible location, but no promises were made. As part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget
preparation process, Addison Park staff made a request to the City Manager’s Office for
funds to study the potential for a new playground at Dome Park.  Those funds were not
included in the fiscal year 2016 budget due to significant budget constraints after the
Town’s loss of a major tax payer. Staff did not submit a request to Council in fiscal year
2017.

Following the Public Hearing at the February 14, 2017 Council meeting, Town
staff engaged TBG Partners to provide design services and evaluate three possible
sites for a new playground.  These sites were evaluated based on four criteria provided
by the residents that formed the playground focus group: 

Short walking distance from current easement playground (Staff set limit at
.25 mile radius);

1.

Surrounded by Residential Zoning;2.
Limited Parking Access;3.
No crossing of busy streets.4.

 TBG Partners also provided additional parameters for evaluating the sites, including: 

Disruption to Adjacent Lots1.
Flat Site2.
Limited Demolition Required3.
Access to Utilities4.
Access to Trails5.
Good Visibility/Feels Safe6.



Limited Safety Hazards7.
Adjacent to Other Playgrounds8.

Based on the evaluation of the three sites, TBG Partners recommends the sites in the
following order: (see attached presentation) 

Dome Park1.
Les Lacs Park (adjacent to lake)2.
Athletic Club3.

Before staff can move forward with the installation of the new playground, the following
actions will need to be taken by Council: 

Select the site for the relocation of the playground1.
Approve the schematic design2.
Approve funding for the relocation since it is not included in the Fiscal Year
2017 budget

3.

Parks staff has received formal opposition from one resident in close proximity to Dome
Park.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends Dome Park as the preferred site for a new playground
based on the park evaluation and analysis performed by TBG Partners.

Attachments
Playground Site Inventory and Analysis Presentation



ADDISON PARKS EVALUATION / SITE INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS



PURPOSE : EVALUATE 3 AVAILABLE SITES WITHIN A 0.25 MILE WALKING RADIUS 
TO REPLACE THE EXISTING EASEMENT PLAYGROUND STRUCTURE



GOAL : PROVIDE A RECOMMENDATION BASED UPON THE MOST DESIRABLE SITE 
FOR THE NEW LOCATION OF THE PLAYGROUND



S
H

E
R

LO
C

K
 D

R
IV

EB E L T W A Y  D R I V E

B E L T W A Y  D R I V E
A D D I S O N  T O W N  C E N T E R

G E O R G E 
H . W .  B U S H 

E L E M E N TA R Y 
S C H O O L

G R E E N H I L L  S C H O O LA L F R E D  J .  L O O S 
S P O R T S  C O M P L E X

A D D I S O N 
AT H L E T I C 

C L U B

L E S  L A C S 
PA R K

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 P
A

R
K

R E D D I N G  T R A I L 
D O G  PA R K

M
A

R
S

H
 L

A
N

E

M
ID

W
A

Y
 R

O
A

D

P R O T O N  D R I V E

L ES  L
A CS  A

V ENU E

D O M E  D R I V E

E X I S T I N G 
E A S E M E N T 

P L AY G R O U N D

D O M E 
PA R K

L E S  L A C S 
P O N D  PA R K 

A D D I S O N 
T O W N  PA R K

0 . 2 5  M I L E  W A L K

CONTEXT MAP LEGEND

TRAILS

0.25 MILE WALKABILITY

VEHICLE MINOR

VEHICLE MAJOR

PROPOSED SITE 

EXISTING EASEMENT PLAYGROUND

RESIDENTIAL AREA

PARKS / GREEN SPACE

SCHOOL

ATHLETIC USE

MIX-USED / RESTAURANT

CITY LIMITS

NEIGHBORHOOD PLAYGROUND

COMMERICIAL USE

ADDISON PARKS EVALUATION/ CONTEXT MAP
PAGE 413 March 2017Town of AddisonAddison, TX



TO
W

N
 O

F 
A

D
D

IS
IO

N
 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S 0.25 MI WALKABILITY

SURROUNDED BY RESIDENTIAL ZONING

LIMITED PARKING ACCESS

DOES NOT CROSS BUSY STREETS

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S

DISRUPTION TO ADJACENT LOTS

FLAT SITE

LIMITED DEMOLITION REQUIRED

ACCESS TO UTILITIES

ACCESS TO TRAILS

GOOD VISIBILITY/ FEELS SAFE

LIMITED SAFETY HAZARDS

ADJACENT TO OTHER PLAYGROUNDS

LEAST 
DESIRABLE

LEAST 
DESIRABLE

(1)

(1)

(2)

(2)

(3)

(3)

MOST 
DESIRABLE

MOST 
DESIRABLE

ADDISON PARKS EVALUATION/ EVALUATION PARAMETERS
PAGE 513 March 2017Town of AddisonAddison, TX



A

B

C

D

W A Y S I D E  C O U R T

W
A

T
ER

FO
R

D
 D

R
I V

E

L E S  L A C S  P O N D

SITE DIAGRAM LEGEND

TRAILS

NEIGHBORHOOD WALKS

VEHICLE MINOR

OVERHEAD POWERLINES

ORNAMENTAL IRON FENCE

HEAVY SLOPE

OPEN SPACE

RESIDENTIAL AREA

PARKING

SITE LOCATION

PERIMETER OF EXISTING 
EASEMENT PLAYGROUND

EXISTING TREES

LIGHT POLE

POND

VIEWSHED

TO
W

N
 O

F 
A

D
D

IS
IO

N
 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S 0.25 MI WALKABILITY

SURROUNDED BY RESIDENTIAL ZONING

LIMITED PARKING ACCESS

DOES NOT CROSS BUSY STREETS

LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3)
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
PA

RA
M

ET
ER

S DISRUPTION TO ADJACENT LOTS

FLAT SITE

LIMITED DEMOLITION REQUIRED

ACCESS TO UTILITIES

LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3)

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S ACCESS TO TRAILS

GOOD VISIBILITY / FEELS SAFE

LIMITED SAFETY HAZARDS

ADJACENT TO OTHER PLAYGROUNDS

LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3)

ADDISON PARKS EVALUATION/ LES LACS ANALYSIS
PAGE 613 March 2017Town of AddisonAddison, TX

A

B

C
D



A

B

C

D

C
A

N
O

T
 L

A
N

EA Z U R E  L A N E

A D D I S O N  AT H L E T I C  C L U B

M O R M A N  L A N E

6 0  PA R K I N G  S P O T S 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S ACCESS TO TRAILS

GOOD VISIBILITY / FEELS SAFE

LIMITED SAFETY HAZARDS

ADJACENT TO OTHER PLAYGROUNDS

SITE DIAGRAM LEGEND

TRAILS

NEIGHBORHOOD WALKS

VEHICLE ALLEY

VEHICLE MINOR

OVERHEAD POWERLINES

BRICK WALLS

DENSE SHRUBS

PERIMETER OF EXISTING 
EASEMENT PLAYGROUND

EXISTING TREES

GATEWAY / ENTRANCE

LIGHT POLE

ORNAMENTAL PLANTING

VIEWSHED

RETAINING WALLS

OPEN SPACE

RESIDENTIAL AREA

PARKING

ATHLETIC USE

SITE LOCATION

TO
W

N
 O

F 
A

D
D

IS
IO

N
 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S 0.25 MI WALKABILITY

SURROUNDED BY RESIDENTIAL ZONING

LIMITED PARKING ACCESS

DOES NOT CROSS BUSY STREETS

LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3) LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3)
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
PA

RA
M

ET
ER

S DISRUPTION TO ADJACENT LOTS

FLAT SITE

LIMITED DEMOLITION REQUIRED

ACCESS TO UTILITIES

LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3)

ADDISON PARKS EVALUATION/ ATHLETIC CLUB ANALYSIS
PAGE 713 March 2017Town of AddisonAddison, TX

ACB

D



A

B

C

D TO
W

N
 O

F 
A

D
D

IS
IO

N
 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S 0.25 MI WALKABILITY

SURROUNDED BY RESIDENTIAL ZONING

LIMITED PARKING ACCESS

DOES NOT CROSS BUSY STREETS

LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3) LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3)
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
PA

RA
M

ET
ER

S DISRUPTION TO ADJACENT LOTS

FLAT SITE

LIMITED DEMOLITION REQUIRED

ACCESS TO UTILITIES

LEAST (1) (2) MOST (3)

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

PA
RA

M
ET

ER
S ACCESS TO TRAILS

GOOD VISIBILITY / FEELS SAFE

LIMITED SAFETY HAZARDS

ADJACENT TO OTHER PLAYGROUNDS

ADDISON PARKS EVALUATION/ DOME PARK ANALYSIS
PAGE 813 March 2017Town of AddisonAddison, TX

S
H

E
R

LO
C

K
 D

R
IV

E

A

B

C

D

SITE DIAGRAM LEGEND

TRAILS

NEIGHBORHOOD WALKS

VEHICLE ALLEY

VEHICLE MINOR

OVERHEAD POWERLINES

SOLID WOOD FENCE

DENSE SHRUBS

OPEN SPACE

RESIDENTIAL AREA

PARKING

SITE LOCATION

PERIMETER OF EXISTING 
EASEMENT PLAYGROUND

EXISTING TREES

EXISTING PLANTING BED 

GATEWAY / ENTRANCE

LIGHT POLE

WATER METER

VIEWSHED

D O M E  D R I V E



TOTAL =  20

TOTAL = 22

ATHLETIC CLUB TOTAL = 31

LES LACS

DOME PARK

ADDISON PARKS EVALUATION/ RECOMMENDED SITE
PAGE 913 March 2017Town of AddisonAddison, TX



THANK YOU



   
AI-2076     16.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Finance

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On A Resolution Approving Amendment
No. 1  To The Agreement For Grant Funding With Addison Arbor Foundation
And Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into An Agreement In An Amount
Not To Exceed $47,500.

BACKGROUND:
This grant funding agreement was originally approved by the Council in September
2016.  The Addison Arbor Foundation (Foundation) has reviewed the agreement  and
has requested the following changes:
  

In lieu of an audit of the financial statement by an independent Certified
Public Accountant, the Foundation will provide a complete accounting of the
funding and documents that support the grant expenses.  For example,
copies of any purchase orders, invoices, canceled checks or other evidence
of disbursements will be provided to Town staff.
Add language to Section III: Funding-  Due to the nature of some projects not
being competed within the fiscal year ,the Foundation will be allowed to
continue the program as long as they provide status through quarterly
reporting submissions.
Add to language to Section IV: Responsibility: Indemnification - They
requested for language to be added that states both the Town and the
Foundation will communicate with each other in writing of any claims filed.
Section numbering adjustments: Additional Requirements of the Organization
& Independent Contractor sections were labeled with the same section
number (Section VIII), the Foundation requested that the section numbering
be updated throughout the document as needed.

Town staff has reviewed the above requests and has provided an amended copy of the
grant agreement that reflects the changes for the additional language in sections III & IV
and the section numbering adjustments. 

Regarding the request by the Foundation to NOT be required to have an audit by an
independent Certified Pubic Accountant, staff would like for council to have a discussion
about this request.  It is a best practice to have non-profit agencies be required to submit
an audit by an independent Certified Public Accountant.  Financial audits are a tool used
to demonstrate an organization’s commitment to financial accountability and
transparency. Currently, the Town requires that any agency receiving grant funds be



transparency. Currently, the Town requires that any agency receiving grant funds be
required to provide an audit completed by an independent Certified Pubic Accountant.  

Listed below are now the Foundation will use the grant funds: 

Landscaping, public art, sculptural works and education.
Purchase of public art piece(s) for installation along the North/South Quorum
corridor and/or Beltway.

The grant funds are budgeted and funded in the general fund.  Funding will not be
allocated until an agreement is approved and signed by both the Town and the
Foundation.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval of the agreement as presented.

Attachments
Resolution with Amended Agreement Exhibit
Original Funding Agreement- Addison Arbor Foundation
Redline- Addison Arbor Funding Agreement 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  THE AMENDMENT NO.  1  TO  THE
AGREEMENT  FOR  GRANT  FUNDING  BETWEEN  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON  AND  THE  ADDISON  ARBOR  FOUNDATION,
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE
AMENDMENT NO. 1, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for Grant Funding between the
Town of  Addison  and  the  Addison  Arbor  Foundation,  a  copy  of  which  is  attached  to  this
Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute
the Amendment No. 1.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 28th day of March, 2017.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING THE GRANT FUNDING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TOWN AND THE ADDISON ARBOR FOUNDATION;
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE  GRANT
FUNDING  AGREEMENT;  AND  PROVIDING  FOR  AN  EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”)  to  provide  a  grant  of  public  funds  to  various  organizations  that  promote  public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  has  adopted  an  application  process  (“Application”)
whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes
within the Town, as determined by the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Addison Arbor Foundation submitted an Application to the Town for
consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens;
and 

WHEREAS,  the  Town  and  the  Addison  Arbor  Foundation  desire  to  enter  into  this
Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions regarding the Addison Arbor Foundation’s use
of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Grant Funding Agreement between the Town and the Addison Arbor
Foundation, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 29th day of September, 2016.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



STATE OF TEXAS §
§ AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING

COUNTY OF DALLAS §

This Agreement for Grant Funding (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 1st day
of October, 2016 by and between the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) and the Addison Arbor
Foundation (the “Organization”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Council has investigated and determined that it is in the best interest
of the City to provide a grant of public funds to various organizations that promote public purposes
and benefit the public within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted an application process (“Application”) whereby
these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes within the City,
as determined by the City; and

WHEREAS, the Organization submitted an Application to the City for consideration; and

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined that
the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Organization desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth the
terms and conditions regarding the Organization’s use of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
hereinafter set forth, the benefits flowing to each of the parties hereto, and other good and valuable
consideration, the Town of Addison, Texas and the Organization do hereby agree as follows:

I.  TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one year from the 1st day of October,
2016, through the 30th day of September,  2017, except  as otherwise provided for herein,  and
subject to the earlier termination of this Agreement (“Term”). The Program, hereinafter defined,
must be completed during the Term of the Agreement to the satisfaction of the City.

II.  GRANT USE

The Organization  shall  complete  the following program(s)  with the  assistance  of  grant
funding received by the City (collectively, the “Program”) (the monetary amounts identified in this
Section II below are approximate amounts to be expended by the Organization in accomplishing the
Program,  and the maximum amount  to  be funded by the City shall  be based upon the actual
expenses for the following Program): 

(a) Purchase and installation of one or two public art  pieces along the North/South
Quorum corridor and/or Beltway redevelopment. The City must provide prior written approval for
the artist, selected artwork and location of the installation. 

1
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



(b) Work with City staff to incorporate and/or refresh landscaping, public art, sculptural
works and educational activities. 

The Organization shall  submit  detailed quarterly program results  to the City listing the
expenditures made by the Organization with the Funding received pursuant to this Agreement by
the following dates:

January 30, 2017
April 30, 2017
July 30, 2017
October 30, 2017

In satisfaction hereof and as determined by the City, the Program may be provided directly
by the Organization or funding of the Program may be provided to the City by the Organization.
The Program will be provided upon the prior approval by the City.  Design for any of the Program
provided by the Organization is subject to the City’s approval prior to installation thereof. 

III.  FUNDING

For  the  completion  of  the  Program  as  described  herein,  the  City  shall  pay  to  the
Organization the sum of no more than Forty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars
($47,500.00)  (“Funding”)  as  follows:  fifty  percent  (50%) of  the  Funding shall  be  paid  to  the
Organization within thirty (30) days of the City’s execution of this Agreement, and the remaining
fifty percent (50%) of the Funding shall be paid to the Organization on May 30, 2017.  However,
the Organization may send a written request to the Chief Financial  Officer of the City for an
advance of the second fifty percent (50%) distribution prior to May 30, 2017 for a compelling
reason, and the Chief Financial Officer may or may not grant this request in his sole and absolute
discretion.  Payment is made contingent upon the Organization not then being in default of this
Agreement. Funding shall not carry over into the following fiscal year.While Funding is generally
limited to the current fiscal year,  due to the nature of the projects that are commissioned by the
Organization, it is understood that Programs undertaken by the Organization may not be completed
within the Term.  If  the  Organization  fails  to complete  the Program,  the Organization  may be
allowed to continue  the Program provided that  it  complies  with  the terms  of  this  Agreement,
including quarterly reporting on the expenditure of Funding. If the Organization fails to complete
the Program identified herein to the satisfaction of the City within the Term, then the Organization
shall  return  any  and  all  unexpended  Funding  to  the  City  immediately  upon  request,  and  the
Organization may be ineligible for the receipt of Funding the following year. 

IV.  RESPONSIBILITY; INDEMNIFICATION

(a) THE  ORGANIZATION  AGREES  TO  ASSUME  AND  DOES  HEREBY
ASSUME ALL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES OR INJURIES
SUSTAINED BY PERSONS OR PROPERTY, WHETHER REAL OR ASSERTED, BY
OR FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THE PROGRAM PERFORMED AND TO BE
PERFORMED  HEREUNDER  BY  THE  ORGANIZATION  OR  BY  ITS  OFFICIALS,
OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, OWNERS, MEMBERS, AGENTS, SERVANTS, INVITEES,
GUESTS,  VOLUNTEERS,  CONTRACTORS,  SUBCONTRACTORS,  OR  ANYONE
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THEM OR ANYONE FOR
WHOSE ACTS ANY OF THEM MAY BE LIABLE.

2
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



(b) INDEMNITY  OWED  BY  THE  ORGANIZATION.  THE ORGANIZATION

COVENANTS AND AGREES TO FULLY DEFEND,  INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE TOWN OF

ADDISON,  TEXAS AND THE ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS,  THE OFFICERS,  EMPLOYEES,
REPRESENTATIVES,  AND VOLUNTEERS OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,  TEXAS,  INDIVIDUALLY OR

COLLECTIVELY,  IN BOTH THEIR OFFICIAL AND PRIVATE CAPACITIES (THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS AND THE ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS,  THE OFFICERS,  EMPLOYEES,
REPRESENTATIVES,  AND VOLUNTEERS OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,  TEXAS EACH BEING AN

“ADDISON PERSON  ” AND COLLECTIVELY THE “ADDISON PERSONS  ”), FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND

ALL COSTS,  CLAIMS,  LIENS,  HARM,  DAMAGES,  LOSSES,  EXPENSES,  FEES,  FINES,  PENALTIES,
PROCEEDINGS, JUDGMENTS, ACTIONS, DEMANDS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LIABILITY, AND SUITS, OF ANY

KIND AND NATURE WHATSOEVER MADE UPON OR INCURRED BY ANY ADDISON PERSON,  WHETHER

DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, (THE “CLAIMS”), THAT ARISE OUT OF, RESULT FROM, OR RELATE TO:
(1) THE PROGRAM AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION II OF THIS AGREEMENT; (2) REPRESENTATIONS OR

WARRANTIES BY THE ORGANIZATION UNDER THIS AGREEMENT;  AND/OR (3)  ANY OTHER ACT OR

OMISSION UNDER OR IN PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT BY THE ORGANIZATION,  OR ANY

OWNER,  OFFICER,  DIRECTOR,  MANAGER,  EMPLOYEE,  AGENT,  REPRESENTATIVE,  CONSULTANT,
CONTRACTOR,  SUBCONTRACTOR,  LICENSEE,  INVITEE,  PATRON,  GUEST,  CUSTOMER,  OR

CONCESSIONAIRE OF OR FOR THE ORGANIZATION, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY FOR WHOM

THE ORGANIZATION IS LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE,  AND THEIR RESPECTIVE OWNERS,  OFFICERS,
DIRECTORS,  MANAGERS,  EMPLOYEES,  AGENTS,  REPRESENTATIVES,  CONSULTANTS,  CONTRACTORS,
SUBCONTRACTOR,  LICENSEES,  INVITEES,  PATRONS,  GUESTS,  CUSTOMERS,  AND CONCESSIONAIRES.
SUCH  DEFENSE,  INDEMNITY  AND  HOLD  HARMLESS  SHALL  AND  DOES
INCLUDE CLAIMS ALLEGED OR FOUND TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED IN WHOLE OR
IN  PART BY  THE  NEGLIGENCE OR  GROSS  NEGLIGENCE OF ANY  ADDISON
PERSON, OR CONDUCT BY ANY ADDISON PERSON THAT WOULD GIVE RISE TO
STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY KIND.

THE ORGANIZATION  PARTIES   SHALL PROMPTLY ADVISE THE CITY  EACH OTHER   IN WRITING

OF ANY CLAIM OR DEMAND AGAINST ANY ADDISON PERSON OR THE ORGANIZATION RELATED TO OR

ARISING OUT OF THE ORGANIZATION’S ACTIVITIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND SHALL SEE TO THE

INVESTIGATION AND DEFENSE OF SUCH CLAIM OR DEMAND AT THE ORGANIZATION’S SOLE COST AND

EXPENSE.  THE ADDISON PERSONS SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT, AT THE ADDISON PERSONS’ OPTION AND

AT OWN EXPENSE,  TO PARTICIPATE IN SUCH DEFENSE WITHOUT RELIEVING THE ORGANIZATION OF

ANY OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER.

THE PROVISIONS OF THIS DEFENSE,  INDEMNITY,  AND HOLD HARMLESS OBLIGATION,  AND

ANY OTHER DEFENSE,  INDEMNITY,  AND HOLD HARMLESS OBLIGATION SET FORTH IN THIS

AGREEMENT, SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

V. TERMINATION

This Agreement may be canceled and terminated by either party at any time and for any
reason or no reason upon giving at least thirty (30) days written notice of such cancellation and
termination  to  the  other  party  hereto.   Such notice  shall  be sent  certified  mail,  return  receipt
requested,  and to  the  most  recent  address  shown on  the  records  of  the  party  terminating  the
Agreement.   The thirty (30) day period shall commence upon deposit of the said notice in the
United States mail and shall conclude at midnight of the 30th day thereafter.  In the event of such
cancellation and termination and if the Organization has failed at the time of such cancellation and
termination to provide the Program set forth herein, the Organization shall immediately refund to
the City that portion of Funding paid to the Organization under the terms of this Agreement (and

3
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



identified in Section II, above) allocable to the Program that has not been completed at the time of
cancellation and termination, as determined by the City.

Upon payment or tender of any refund amount, all of the obligations of the Organization and
the City under this Agreement shall be discharged and terminated (except as otherwise provided
herein, e.g., except for obligations and responsibilities as may survive termination or cancellation of
this Agreement as provided for in this Agreement) and no action shall lie or accrue for additional
benefit, consideration or value for or based upon the Program performed under or pursuant to this
Agreement.

VI.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST

(a) No officer or employee of the City shall have any interest or receive any benefit,
direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.  This prohibition is not intended and
should not be construed to preclude payment of expenses legitimately incurred by City officials in
the  conduct  of  the  City’s  business.   No officer,  employee,  representative,  or  volunteer  of  the
Organization shall have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds
hereof.

(b) For purposes of this section, “benefit” means anything reasonably regarded as an
economic advantage,  including benefit  to any other person in whose welfare the beneficiary is
interested, but does not include contributions or expenditures made and reported in accordance with
any law.

VII.  ACCOUNTING

Prior to adopting its annual budget, the Organization shall submit for the City’s review a
budget showing the use of the Funding  provided pursuant to this Agreement, and the Organization
shall  make  such  quarterly  financial  reports  to  the  City,  as  provided  for  herein,  listing  the
expenditures made by the Organization from the Funding.  The approval of the Organization’s
annual budget creates a fiduciary duty in the Organization with respect to the Funding provided by
this Agreement.

Funding received hereunder from the City may be spent for day to day operations, supplies,
salaries and other administrative costs, provided that such costs are necessary for the promotion and
encouragement of the purposes for which the Funding may be used as described herein.

The  Organization  shall  maintain  complete  and  accurate  financial  records  of  all  of  its
revenues,  including,  without  limitation,  each  expenditure  of  Funding received  pursuant  to  this
Agreement.  On request of the City at any time, the Organization shall make all its records available
for inspection and review by the City or its designated representative(s).  Within ninety (90) days of
the end of the Organization’s fiscal year, the Organization shall provide the City with a financial
statement  signed  by the  Chairman  of  the  Organization’s  Board  of  Directors  (or  other  person
acceptable  to  the  City)  and  audited  by  an  independent  Certified  Public  Accountant,  at  the
Organization’s expense, setting forth the Organization’s income, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
such obligation shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If this Agreement is
terminated prior to its expiration, the Organization shall provide such reports as required by the City
for the period prior to the expiration for which reports have not been provided, and such obligation

4
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



shall survive the termination hereof; and the obligation to provide the reports for the last quarter of
this Agreement shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.

All  application  materials,  financial  information,  quarterly  (or  other)  reports,  any  other
information described herein or required hereunder, and general correspondence with the City must
be submitted to the City in electronic format to the City email address specified in the application
packet.  Additionally,  the  City  may  require  that  such  materials,  information,  reports,  and
correspondence also be provided to the City in writing a hard-copy, non-electronic format.

VIII. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE ORGANIZATION

The Organization agrees to the following:

(a) The City may conduct an on-site visit to the Organization during the Term; 

(b) Within thirty (30) days of the City’s execution of this Agreement, the Organization shall
provide to the City a current list of all Organization board members and a schedule of all board
meetings. A representative from the City may choose to attend any scheduled board meetings. The
City shall be immediately notified of any changes to the schedule; and 

(c)  In  any and all  marketing  material  produced by the  Organization,  the  City shall  be
prominently recognized as a supporter of the Organization through the use of the City designated
logo provided. 

VIIIIX.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

In completing the Program under this Agreement, the relationship between the City and the
Organization is that of independent contractor, and the City and the Organization by the execution
of this Agreement do not change the independent status of the Organization.  The Organization is an
independent contractor, and no term or provision of this Agreement or action by the Organization in
the performance of this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed as making the Organization
the agent, servant or employee of the City, or to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint
venture relationship, or a joint enterprise relationship, or to allow the City to exercise discretion or
control over the manner in which the Organization performs the Program which is described in this
Agreement.

IXX. NON-ASSIGNABILITY; NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFIT

The Organization may not and shall  have no authority to assign,  transfer,  or otherwise
convey by any means whatsoever this Agreement or any of the rights, duties or responsibilities
hereunder without obtaining the prior written approval of the City, and any attempted assignment,
transfer, or other conveyance of this Agreement without such approval shall be null and void and be
cause for immediate termination of this Agreement by the City.

This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and is not intended to and shall
not be deemed to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any third person or entity.

5
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



XIX.  NO PARTNERSHIP, JOINT VENTURE, OR JOINT ENTERPRISE

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute that the City and the
Organization are partners or joint venturers with each other, or shall be construed or be deemed to
establish that their relationship constitutes, or that this Agreement creates, a joint enterprise.

XII  

XI.  NON-DISCRIMINATION

During the term of this Agreement, the Organization agrees that it shall not discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, color, sex or religion,
ancestry, national origin, place of birth, or handicap.

XIIXIII.  LEGAL COMPLIANCE; AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO LAWS; RECITALS

The Organization shall observe and abide by, and this Agreement is subject to, all applicable
federal, state, and local (including the City) laws, rules, regulations, and policies (including, without
limitation, the Charter and Ordinances of the City), as the same currently exist or as they may be
hereafter amended. The Organization agrees that any and all records of the Organization which,
including but not limited to describe, relate to, convey and/or illustrate the obligations, terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement shall be subject to the Texas Public Information Act, Texas
Government Code Chapter 552, as amended.  The above and foregoing recitals to this Agreement
are true and correct and incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

XIIIXIV.  VENUE; GOVERNING LAW

In the event of any action under this Agreement, exclusive venue for all causes of action
shall be instituted and maintained in Dallas County, Texas. The parties agree that the laws of the
State  of  Texas  shall  govern  and  apply  to  the  interpretation,  validity  and  enforcement  of  this
Agreement; and, with respect to any conflict of law provisions, the parties agree that such conflict of
law provisions shall not affect the application of the law of Texas (without reference to its conflict
of law provisions) to the governing, interpretation, validity and enforcement of this Agreement.

XIVXV.  COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument.

XVXVI.  NO WAIVER; RIGHTS CUMULATIVE

The failure by either party to exercise any right or power, or option given to it by this
Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance with the terms of this Agreement, shall not constitute
a waiver of the terms and conditions of this Agreement with respect to any other or subsequent
breach thereof, nor a waiver by such party of its rights at any time thereafter to require exact and
strict  compliance with all  the terms hereof.   The rights or remedies  under this  Agreement  are
cumulative to any other rights or remedies, which may be granted by law.

6
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



XVIXVII.  NOTICES

All notices, communications and reports, required or permitted under this Agreement shall
be  personally  delivered  or  mailed  to  the  respective  parties  using  certified  mail,  return  receipt
requested, postage prepaid, at the addresses shown below.  The City and the Organization agree to
provide the other with written notification within five (5) days, if the address for notices, provided
below, is changed.  Notices by personal delivery shall be deemed delivered upon the date delivered;
mailed notices shall be deemed communicated on the date shown on the return receipt.  If no date is
shown, the mailed notice shall be deemed communicated on the third (3rd) day after depositing the
same in the United States mail.

The City’s address:

Attn: City Manager
Town of Addison
5300 Belt Line Road
Dallas, Texas  75254

The Organization’s address:

Dr. Jay M. Ihrig
Addison Arbor Foundation
PO Box 1649
Addison, TX 75001

XVIIXVIII.  SEVERABILITY

The terms of this Agreement are severable, and if any section, paragraph, clause, or other
portion of this Agreement shall be found to be illegal, unlawful, unconstitutional or void for any
reason, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the parties shall be
deemed to have contracted as if said section, paragraph, clause or portion had not been in the
Agreement initially.

XVIIIXIX.  AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE AGREEMENT

The undersigned officers and/or agents of the parties hereto are the properly authorized
officials and have the necessary authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto,
and each party hereby certifies to the other that any necessary resolutions or other act extending
such authority have been duly passed and are now in full force and effect.

XIXXX.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement and agreement between the
City and the Organization and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations and/or agreements,
either written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both
the City and the Organization.

XXXXI. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY

The parties agree that the City has not waived its sovereign immunity by entering into
and performing its obligations under this Agreement.

7
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed by
their proper corporate officers as first above specified, and have caused their proper corporate seal
to be hereto affixed the day and year first above written.

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

By:                                                                            
Wesley S. Pierson, City Manager

ADDISON ARBOR FOUNDATION

By:                                                                            
Dr. Jay M. Ihrig, President

Date:_______________________________        Date:_______________________________

8
AGREEMENT FOR GRANT FUNDING 2016-2017 (Addison Arbor Foundation)



   
AI-2137     17.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: Information Technology

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present And Discuss An Update On The Public, Educational, And Governmental
(PEG) Channel.

BACKGROUND:
This item is to provide an update to the Council on the status of the Public, Educational,
and Governmental (PEG) channel.

In 2005, the Texas Legislature passed Senate Bill 5, which enacted a new Chapter 66 to
the Texas Utilities Code, authorizing a state-issued certificate of franchise authority for
cable and video providers. Chapter 66 provides for additional funds to PEG access
facilities for their citizens. Chapter 66 expressly states that providers are required to pay
these additional funds to the city, over-and-above the five percent franchise fee to assist
the city in providing PEG channel capacity. These funds have a restricted use. If the
funds are not spent for the purposes specified in Chapter 66, the provider may be able to
deduct the amount they previously paid from future franchise fee payments.

Since the inception of the PEG fund, Addison has collected close to $320,000 in PEG
fees. As part of the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget, Council authorized staff to upgrade the
existing steaming system in the Council Chambers and purchase three additional high
definition (HD) broadcast and streaming systems to be permanently installed at the
parlor in Town Hall, the Addison Treehouse, and the Addison Conference Centre to be
paid for by the PEG funds in an amount not to exceed $199.867.65. This work has been
completed and will be utilized to webcast/broadcast meetings on the web and the PEG
channels.

The Town's transparency philosophy has always been to use all of the available media
resources (newsletter, website, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, publication, door hangers,
etc.) to communicate with its stakeholders. The PEG channel is the last leg of the
communication platform to be offered to the public.

The PEG channel broadcast to the AT&T channel will be available to the public after the
Town Meeting on April 3, 2017.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.





   
AI-2146     18.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On TCEQ Certification, Additional
Environmental Investigation, And Environmental Documents Obtained By
The Town Of Addison Relating To 5015 Spectrum Drive.

BACKGROUND:
The property at 5015 Spectrum Drive was recently rezoned by the Town of Addison from
Commercial to a Planned Development to allow a Multi-Family Residential project by
AMLI Residential.

Mayor Todd Meier requested an update from staff on the environmental documents that
have been obtained by the Town of Addison relating to the property located at 5015
Spectrum Drive.  The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), through its
Voluntary Cleanup Program, has certified that the property at 5015 Spectrum Drive is
acceptable for residential land use.    

At the March 14, 2017 Council meeting, Mayor Meier proposed pursuing additional
environmental testing and analysis of the property at 5015 Spectrum Drive beyond that
which was required of the property owner (Dallas Investment Corp.) as part of the
TCEQ's Voluntary Clean Up Program.
 
The TCEQ Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP) provides administrative, technical, and
legal incentives to encourage the cleanup of contaminated sites in Texas.  The VCP is
designed to address sites that are burdened by real or reasonably perceived
environmental issues that may hamper real estate transactions or redevelopment and
eliminate those issues through proper remediation.  Once the issues are properly
resolved, a VCP Certificate of Completion is issued which enables many unused or
under used properties to be restored to economically productive or community beneficial
uses. 
 
Town Staff requested and received the documents in the Voluntary Cleanup Program
(VCP) case file related to 5015 Spectrum Drive.  The documents in the case file include
the following and are provided below:
  

The TCEQ – VCP Final Certificate of Completion
The Phase II Environmental Site Assessment
The Affected Property Assessment Report (APAR) that TCEQ uses to make
its land-use determination under the VCP  (Click here to view the PDF

http://wp.addisontexas.net/addisonnews/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2017/03/APAR_5015-Spectrum.compressed.pdf


attachment. It is large and may take a few minutes to load).

Also attached is a detailed summary -- "5015 Spectrum Drive - Summary of
Environmental Reports” – which provides an overview of the history of the property, the
environmental assessments conducted, and the conclusion from the Texas Commission
on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) that the 5015 Spectrum Drive is acceptable for
residential use.

It is staff's view that the Final Certificate of Completion issued by TCEQ is sufficient
evidence that all environmental concerns have been satisfactorily addressed so as to
certify that the property at 5015 Spectrum Drive is acceptable for residential land use.

Mayor Todd Meier has requested to show a video of responses from AMLI
representatives during the February 14, 2017 Council meeting. The video can be viewed
by clicking here.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council on this matter.

Attachments
5015 Spectrum Drive - Summary of Environment Reports
5015 Spectrum Drive - Certificate of Completion
5015 Spectrum Drive - Phase II Environmental Investigation

http://wp.addisontexas.net/addisonnews/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2017/03/APAR_5015-Spectrum.compressed.pdf
https://youtu.be/j9vhrrLQt5Y


Summary: 5015 Spectrum Drive Environmental Reports 

1 
 

The following information is a summary of the environmental reports related to the property 
located at 5015 Spectrum Drive.  The property at 5015 Spectrum Drive was recently rezoned by 
the Town of Addison from Commercial to a Planned Development to allow a Multi-Family 
Residential project by AMLI.  The document is structured in a way to help the “layperson” 
understand the following: 

- The types and purpose of Environmental Site Assessments (explained in the section 
entitled, Environmental Reports);   

- The purpose and process of the TCEQ Volunteer Cleanup Program (explained in the 
section entitled, TCEQ Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP));   

- The history related to the property located at 5015 Spectrum Drive and related 
environmental reports, as well as the history related to relevant properties adjacent to 
5015 Spectrum Drive and related environmental reports (explained in the section 
entitled, Background – 5015 Spectrum Drive); and  

- The conclusion that was reached by the TCEQ on the acceptability of residential land 
uses on the property located at 5015 Spectrum Drive (explained in the section entitled, 
Conclusion). 

Environmental Reports 

An Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) is a report prepared for a real estate holding that 
identifies potential or existing environmental contamination liabilities.  There are different 
levels of environmental site assessments that are pursued to ensure properties are 
environmentally acceptable for various types of uses.  The standard environmental site 
assessments include: 

- Phase I 
- Phase II – Limited 
- Phase II – Comprehensive  

Phase I 

The goal of the Phase I ESA is to determine if there are any situations on the site that meet the 
definition of a Recognized Environmental Condition (REC).  A REC is defined as the presence or 
likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products in, on, or at a property. 

A REC doesn’t necessarily mean that there is contamination, just that it is possible.  The finding 
of a REC often requires further investigation of the REC to determine if there has been any 
environmental impact. 

Each Phase I Environmental Site Assessment follows the same four-stage process: 

1. Records Review 
2. Site Reconnaissance 
3. Interviews 
4. Report Preparation 



Summary: 5015 Spectrum Drive Environmental Reports 

2 
 

Phase II – Limited  

Once a Phase I ESA is complete, typically a “limited” Phase II environmental study is performed 
to confirm the presence of a pollutant.  If a pollutant is detected, then a property owner (or 
potential buyer) will have to decide whether or not to conduct a comprehensive phase II study.   

A common procedure in a land transaction is for an owner/buyer to conduct a Limited Phase II 
ESA to determine: 

1. If the Recognized Environmental Condition (REC) is minor or inconsequential 
2. If the REC is confirmed and may pose more of a risk than the buyer is willing to accept 
3. If the REC is confirmed and more study is needed to quantify the extent of pollutants 

discovered in order to make an appropriate decision 

If decision 3 is selected, a follow-up Comprehensive Phase II ESA would be conducted. 

Phase II – Comprehensive  

A comprehensive Phase II ESA includes extensive sampling to fully characterize the extent of 
contamination, analysis of potential migration pathways and potential receptors so that 
cleanup costs can be estimated. 

TCEQ Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP) 

The TCEQ Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP) provides administrative, technical, and legal 
incentives to encourage the cleanup of contaminated sites in Texas.  The VCP is a brownfields 
program designed to address sites that are burdened by real or reasonably perceived 
environmental issues that may hamper real estate transactions or redevelopment.  Since all 
non-responsible parties, including future lenders and landowners, receive protection from 
liability to the state of Texas for cleanup of sites under the VCP, most of the constraints for 
completing real estate transactions at those sites are eliminated once a VCP certificate of 
completion is issued. As a result, many unused or under used properties may be restored to 
economically productive or community beneficial use. 

The VCP provides certification of acceptable land uses of various types, the highest certification 
is for residential uses.  In other words, if a site is certified as acceptable for residential uses, all 
environmental concerns have been appropriately addressed and/or remediated to the 
satisfaction of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ).    

After a property owner applies to participate in the Voluntary Cleanup Program, the applicant 
typically submits a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment to TCEQ to communicate what is 
found on the property from an environmental stand point.  All VCP participants are required by 
law to complete an Affected Property Assessment Report (APAR) which is considered to be 
more extensive than a Comprehensive Phase II ESA.  The APAR is a comprehensive report that 
documents the horizontal and vertical extent of contamination, and evaluates the applicable 
exposure pathways (i.e., groundwater ingestion, human health exposure to surface soil 



Summary: 5015 Spectrum Drive Environmental Reports 

3 
 

contamination, surface water exposure, etc.) to further define if and how the contamination 
needs to be cleaned up (i.e., soil removal, groundwater treatment, etc.).  Most Phase II ESAs 
document whether there has been an impact to soil or groundwater from the limited sample 
set collected in areas of concern, but do not go as far as delineating the source(s) of 
contamination. 

Once the APAR is completed to the satisfaction of TCEQ, the information is reviewed, a 
determination is made by TCEQ, and the outcome communicated to the applicant.   

The resulting determination can be one of three outcomes: 

1. Issuance of a Conditional Certificate of Completion – This certifies an applicant has 
demonstrated that long-term response actions (e.g. engineering controls, remediation 
systems, etc.) meet performance standards and are being implemented under 
requirements established in the Texas Voluntary Cleanup Program. 

2. Issuance of a Final Certificate of Completion – This certifies an applicant has 
implemented or completed all requirements of the Texas Voluntary Cleanup 
Agreement. 

3. Issuance of a Final Certificate of Completion with a Municipal Setting Designation – The 
Municipal Settings Designation certifies that designated groundwater at the property is 
not used as potable water, and is prohibited from future use as potable water because 
the groundwater is contaminated in excess of the applicable potable-water protective 
concentration level. 

Background – 5015 Spectrum Drive 

Ashland Chemical Company operated in Addison as a chemical products and storage operation 
for many years (approximately the 1960s – 1983).  Their facility was located at the southwest 
corner of the intersection of what is now Arapaho Road and Quorum Drive.   The Ashland 
facility had an on-site tank farm with tank capacities of 500,000 gallons, drum storage totaling 
55,000 gallons, and approximately 10,000 square feet of warehouse storage space for 
flammable, corrosive, and various non-hazardous materials. The chemicals in the tank farm 
included petroleum hydrocarbons and chemicals such as tetrachloroethene (PCE), 
trichloroethene (TCE), dichlorobenzene isomers, toluene, and xylenes. 

A remedial action report was completed by Woodward-Clyde (dated May 1998), which 
indicated that remedial action was conducted on the Ashland property in late 1997 and early 
1998. The remedial action consisted of the removal and disposal of impacted soil from an area 
40 feet x 40 feet to a maximum depth of 12 feet with 1,300 cubic yards of soil removed. 

The Ashland property (Tract 1) and two additional tracts (5015 Spectrum Drive [Tract 2] and 
Town of Addison Right-of-Way Property [Tract 3]) were entered into the Voluntary Cleanup 
Program (VCP No. 204) administered by the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission 
[TNRCC, predecessor to the current Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ)].  The 
additional tracts were presumably included in the VCP closure because potentially affected 
groundwater had migrated from the Ashland facility.  Ownership of Tract 2 was identified as 



Summary: 5015 Spectrum Drive Environmental Reports 

4 
 

Dallas Investment Corporation (DIC), which corresponds to the property at 5015 Spectrum 
Drive.  Tract 3 was identified as the ROW property owned by the Town of Addison.  Review of 
the VCP files indicates that the closure was based upon a prohibition on "the exposure to and 
use of groundwater from the site for residential, agricultural, recreational, industrial or 
commercial purposes without the express written pre-approval of the TNRCC or the State of 
Texas".  The VCP case was closed as non-residential use (final Certificate of Completion letter 
was dated December 2001).   

A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was performed by ESA Environmental 
Services, Inc. (ESA Environmental) on Tract 2 in November 1991.  The Phase I ESA documented 
that 5015 Spectrum Drive was historically used as farmland.  In the 1980s, a ready mix concrete 
plant was erected on the site for the development of the surrounding area.  One concrete slab 
and patches of gravel remained on the property.  5015 Spectrum Drive has remained vacant 
since the 1991 Phase I ESA report, but the surrounding area has been developed with 
commercial office buildings and hotel properties. 

In 2014, the property owner (Dallas Investment Corporation) planned to sell the property 
located at 5015 Spectrum Drive and requested that the property be changed from non-
residential to residential usage through the TCEQ Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP).  Since the 
property was closed through the TCEQ VCP as non-residential, W&M Environmental Group 
(W&M) conducted a Limited Phase II ESA to collect additional sampling to address potential 
data gaps for the new VCP case and the resulting Affected Property Assessment Report (APAR).  
The Limited Phase II ESA Investigation was performed by W&M in January and February of 2014 
and included shallow soil borings, installation of groundwater monitoring wells, yield testing, 
and collection of soil and groundwater samples at 5015 Spectrum Drive for analysis of potential 
Contaminates of Concern (COCs) that included Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) 
8 metals, Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH), and Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs).  
W&M’s Phase II ESA was submitted to TCEQ as part of the VCP review process.   

Conclusion 

As a result of the comprehensive review conducted through the Affected Property Assessment 
Report, TCEQ issued a Final Certificate of Completion for the property located at 5015 Spectrum 
Drive that certifies that the property is acceptable for residential land use; the highest standard 
allowable under the TCEQ Voluntary Cleanup Program.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Summary: 5015 Spectrum Drive Environmental Reports 

5 
 

The following table provides a chronology of events related to the environmental studies of 
5015 Spectrum Drive and surrounding properties: 

Date Activity/Report Description 

10/31/2014 Charles Goff received a copy of the Certificate of Completion from 
Taylor Bowen via email. 

9/4/2014 W&M Environmental Group (W&M) prepares and submits an Affected 
Property Assessment Report (APAR) for 5015 Spectrum Drive to the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Voluntary Cleanup 
Program (VCP).  The APAR documents that all concentrations of 
contaminants of concern (COCs) are below residential protective 
concentration levels (PCLs) for properties with a Class 3 aquifer. 

8/26/2014 W&M and the project representative meet with TCEQ to discuss the 
progress of 5015 Spectrum Drive and document submittals. 

6/24/2014 An updated TCEQ acceptance letter for the 5015 Spectrum Drive's entry 
into the (VCP 2660) is received. 

6/20/2014 Per the Request of the TCEQ historical documentation and reports 
prepared for the adjacent Ashland Chemical Corporation and the 5015 
Spectrum Drive were sent to the TCEQ. 

5/9/2014 The VCP application previously submitted by W&M to the TCEQ. 5015 
Spectrum Drive is approved and the Site is entered into the VCP with 
VCP ID No. 2660 

3/19/2014 W&M completed and submitted a VCP application to the TCEQ 
requesting that 5015 Spectrum Drive be entered into the VCP. 

Jan – Feb, 2014 W&M advanced ten shallow soil borings (SB-01 thru SB-10) and installed 
three permanent monitoring wells (MW-1 thru MW-3). W&M 
collected soil and groundwater samples with analysis for Volatile 
Organic Compounds (VOCs), Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH), and 
RCRA 8 metals. In February 2014, W&M performed a groundwater yield 
test to demonstrate that groundwater at 5015 Spectrum Drive is Class 3. 
Soil and groundwater results were below the Texas Risk Reduction 
Program (TRRP) protective concentrations levels for Class 3 
groundwater. 

October, 2001 5015 Spectrum Drive received a certificate of completion as part of a 
VCP Application (VCP 204) filed by the Ashland Chemical Company for 
their former property and two cross to down-gradient properties, one 
of which was 5015 Spectrum Drive.  In the final Certificate of 
Completion (COC) 5015 Spectrum Drive was identified as Tract 2 with a 
restrictive covenant on the use of groundwater for Tract 2. 

July, 1998 Ashland Chemical Company communicates with Dallas Investment 
Corporation regarding a COC for 5015 Spectrum Drive which is east and 
adjacent to the Ashland Chemical Corporation property. 

Mar & May, 1998 Woodward-Clyde complete a Remedial Action Report and a Site Closure 
for the Ashland Addison Site. The reports documented groundwater 



Summary: 5015 Spectrum Drive Environmental Reports 

6 
 

monitoring wells installed on the Ashland property and the adjacent 
property at 5015 Spectrum Drive (VCP 2660), removal of soil on the 
Ashland site, and aquifer testing.  Well yield testing utilizing wells on the 
Ashland property and 5015 Spectrum Drive were used to determine the 
range between 0.15 gallons per day (GPD) and 4.90 GPD which is less 
than the TRRP required 150 gallons per day (GPD).  Chlorinated solvents 
detected by Woodward-Clyde were slightly above and at the Class 3 
groundwater residential protective concentration levels (PCL). 

April, 1994 Trinity Engineering Testing Corporation conducted a Phase II 
Environmental Site Assessment at 5015 Spectrum Drive. Two boreholes 
were advance for the collection of soil and groundwater samples and 
four composite soil samples were collected. Only one borehole yielded 
groundwater. The sampling identified TPH and metals in the soil and 
groundwater. 

November, 1991 A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was conducted for 5015 
Spectrum Drive. The Phase I ESA identified three recognized 
environmental concerns (RECs) located off-Site; the Ashland Chemical 
Company west of the Site, a sheet metal fabricating facility west of the 
Site, and a scrap metal aluminum recycling facility located northwest of 
the 5015 Spectrum Drive. The Phase I ESA also stated, the property was 
used as a Ready Mix Concrete batch facility in the 1980s for 
development occurring in the area. 

 













































   
AI-2154     19.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On Strategic Planning And Environmental
Testing For Town-Owned Properties Located Along The Cotton Belt
Corridor In The General Vicinity Of The Intersection Of Quorum Drive And
Arapaho Road, Including The +/- 5.6 Acre Site Located At 5035 Arapaho
Road.

BACKGROUND:
The 2013 Comprehensive Land Use Plan identified ten areas within the Town that
warranted more in-depth assessment. To date, three of the ten areas have been studied.
One of the remaining study areas listed is the Town-owned properties along the
proposed Cotton Belt Rail Line. The Town owns approximately 12 acres of undeveloped
land that it has been holding while awaiting the arrival of passenger rail service.

With DART's recent decision to expedite the implementation of passenger service on the
Cotton Belt Corridor to the year 2022, the Town must develop a plan for future
development of the Town's properties, DART's transit center and adjacent property at
the Northeast corner of Addison Road and Arapaho Road, and the private properties
generally known as the Old Addison development on Broadway Street.

The Fiscal Year 2017 budget for Development Services includes $150,000 to fund
Special Area Studies. Staff is requesting confirmation from the City Council regarding
the selection of these properties as the next study area.

Additionally, while staff has no knowledge of industrial uses occurring on any of the
Town-owned properties, there is a history of industrial activities in the area. Therefore, in
addition to the study process, environmental assessments should be completed to
understand the environmental condition of the Town's properties, including any
remediation actions that must occur to make the properties suitable for development.

Should the Council agree, staff will begin the process for selecting planning consultant to
facilitate the special area study process and environmental consultants to conduct the
environmental assessment.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.





   
AI-2147     20.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discussion And Possible Action Regarding A Review Of The Current Transparency
Policy And Practice.

BACKGROUND:
Mayor Todd Meier requested this item be placed on the agenda to review and discuss
the current policy and practice regarding transparency. The main point of discussion is
related to defining the Town's current transparency policy and practice and determining if
it should be in writing. The attachment to this agenda memo outlines the issues and
concerns Mayor Meier would like to discuss.

RECOMMENDATION:
Provide policy direction to staff.

Attachments
Outline for discussion as provided by Mayor Meier



Insert to go with Agenda item that :”Discussion and possible action regarding a 
review of our current transparency policy and practice. What is our current 
transparency policy and should it be in writing?”

What is our Transparency policy?

Last summer on July 12, 2016 at the request of two council members the council 
had a discussion and concluded that “more is better”. 

The only written statement I could find addressing Transparency is in our budget 
Book; 

Under the Roles of Council;

“The role of Council is to develop a long term vision for the Town, to develop 
policies necessary to achieve the vision, and communicate with, and seek input 
from, stakeholders.  This includes

…promoting transparency in communicating with residents, 
businesses, and regional partners.” Page 10, 2016-17 Building a Solid Foundation,

Budget 
Book.

I have updated the outline we covered of our history of Transparency in July of 
2016.

“What is our history in Addison?          
The progress we have made since the “Dark Days” following the FBI 

investigation, death of our mayor and the Rolfe report back in the 80s, much has 
changed.

Began with Town hall meetings 2 times per year,
followed by meeting and exceeding the legal 

requirements for financial disclosure with our award winning Budget Books and 
Certified Annual Reports (CAFR) from our finance department.

A push for video broadcasting and archiving
of council meetings began in 2008 initially meeting strong resistance yet by 2010 
was implemented.

Since May of 2011



Town Hall meetings 2x a year continued 
with the agenda and presentations determined by mayor and council members. 
Each meeting concluding with an extensive open mic Q&A session.

Video of all Regular council meetings was 
expanded to include P&Z meetings.  Work sessions relocated downstairs to 
“parlor” for easier access and more comfortable space for spectators.

Police department began providing 
annual reports, weekly reports, sex offender reports and other crime information 
on line.  Joined with citizens to reform Neighborhood Watch groups.

Finance department brought 
access to CAFR on line, Budget Book on line, Kanter reports and responses on line 
and archived, website updated to include easy access to all financial materials 
including on line check book and access to Open Gov. com.

Availability of mayor to media; 
DMN, DBJ, TV News, Blogs including Truth in Addison and Facts Matter.

Mayor and council ease 
of access by email and ipads. Open Public comment 
section at the beginning of each Regular Council meeting.

Full time certified 
City Secretary to facilitate and expedite the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) 
requests. Economic Development 
luncheons to highlight our local restaurateurs on the first Monday of each month. 
Posted as an open meeting.

Mayor Coffees 2x month; First Wednesday and Third Thursday. Posted as Open 
meetings.

Waiver of Attorney Client privilege with respect to certain documents.
Weekly Mayor Newsletter since July 2011, in June 2016 over 

2,000 subscribers.  
Mayor Newsletter subscription list available to each 

council member for their own newsletter since 2013.

May 2016 council members Walden, Duffy, Angell, Arfsten and 
Hughes voted to terminate the mayor’s newsletter.



Not long after the termination of the mayor’s newsletter, the staff 
began writing a Town Newsletter. Council did not provide any guidance as to 
content. 

Town to begin broadcast on cable channel in April 2017. No current council policy
in place for guidance for staff as to content, advertising, etc,,,

Are those practices consistent with “promoting transparency in communicating 
with residents, businesses, and regional partners.”?

Do we agree that one of the intended purposes of Transparency is to “build and 
maintain trust”?

Are our current practices consistent with that purpose?

Do all council members make themselves available to the public?

Do council members have private meetings? If so, is that a good practice?

Are there other current practices that may be inconsistent with building and 
maintaining trust?

June of 016 council members Walden, Duffy, Angell, Hughes and Arfsten 
voted to terminate the mayor’s newsletter. 

Soon thereafter Town staff began to write and distribute a weekly 
newsletter entitled; “A weekly wrap up of All Things Addison.”

That Town newsletter uses the subscription list of email addresses that 
were developed for the mayor’s newsletter. 

The Town staff has added one full time person to our Communications and 
Marketing Staff.

The Council has not provided any policy guidelines for the Town newsletter.

What is the intended purpose of the Town newsletter?

Is it intended to fully inform our community 
about “All Things Addison”?



What are the minimum disclosure requirements for our Town 
newsletter?

What are the reasonable expectations of our community about those 
disclosures and information?

Should the Town newsletter only report the “good” news as a marketing 
piece or all of the news?

In a recent Town newsletter there was a promotion of an event at a mayoral 
candidate’s business; is that a good practice?

In a recent Town newsletter there was mention and promotion of a public hearing
for a playground issue yet in the very same newsletter there was no mention of a 
public hearing for a major rezoning of commercial property to residential to 
permit 349 apartments, is that good practice?

The Town newsletter reports on a limited number of council actions; not all.

What process is used in determining which actions are reported?

The Town newsletter does not report how each council member voted on any 
item, is that good practice?

The Town newsletter does not report on attendance statistics for council 
members, is that good practice?

Should the Town newsletter report on personnel changes on our staff?

Should the Town newsletter keep the community apprised of the status of 
investigations involving former employees?   I.e. Former Addison Police Officer 
and treasurer of the Addison Police Association James Easterling?

In terms of keeping our community well informed what notices should be 
provided for Public Hearings, important council matters and zoning issues?

Should additional resources be used to inform our community; above the 
state minimums?  I.e., 200 feet, use of the Dallas Commercial Record



Additional possible resources;

Town newsletter?

Signage?

Mail?

Social Media?

Develop and utilize an Addison APP?

How will the council guide staff on the utilization of our new TV Channel to fully 
and fairly inform our community?

What other current practices should be addressed, revised or new practices 
developed to “Build and Maintain Trust”?

While certainly intent is important, perception often guides public opinion. Full 
and open communication is the central component of our commitment to 
Transparency. 

In the coming years Transparency that leads to building and maintaining trust will 
be critical for Addison. As we face the challenges of funding our necessary 
Infrastructure upgrades and deal with mandatory revenue caps that require 
community approval, the trust of our community will be essential for our 
continued success. 

Abraham Lincoln; “Healing schisms requires a high level
 of communication.”

George Washington; “It is essential that public opinion
 be enlightened.”

Transparency takes time, pace and commitment.

Transparency is the key to building and maintaining trust.





   
AI-2148     21.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/28/2017  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discuss And Consider Action Regarding A Review Of Current Council Ethics
Guidelines And The Need For Process And Sanctions.

BACKGROUND:
Mayor Todd Meier requested this item be placed on the agenda to review and discuss
current City Council ethics guidelines and the need for process and sanctions. The
main point of discussion is related to determining if there are adequate process and
enforcement mechanisms in place for the Town's ethics ordinance.

The Town's Code of Ethics in its entirety can be found in the Town's Code Of
Ordinances at the following link:

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/addison/codes/code_of_ordinances

(Please copy and paste to your browser if the link does not work).

Attached you will find the City of Richardson ethics ordinance. Sections 2.7, 2.8, & 2.9
pertain specifically to process and enforcement mechanisms.

RECOMMENDATION:
Provide policy direction to staff.

Attachments
City of Richardson Code of Ethics



3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 1/8

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

ARTICLE I. - CODE OF ETHICS

Sec. 2-1. - Purpose.

It is hereby declared to be the policy of the city that the proper operation of democratic government

requires that public o�cials be independent, impartial and responsible only to the people of the city; that

no o�cer shall permit any interest, �nancial or otherwise, direct or indirect, or engagement in any business,

transaction or professional activity to con�ict with the proper discharge of such person's duties in the public

interest; that public o�ce not be used for personal gain; and that the city council at all times shall be

maintained as a nonpartisan body. To implement such a policy, the city council deems it advisable to enact

a code of ethics for o�cials, as de�ned in this article, whether elected or appointed, paid or unpaid, to serve

not only as a guide for o�cial conduct of the city's public servants, but also as a basis for discipline for those

who refuse to abide by its terms, the overriding interest being that such o�cers of the city shall at all times

strive to avoid even the appearance of impropriety.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-2. - Title; application.

This section shall be known as the code of ethics.

This code of ethics shall apply to all o�cials as de�ned in this article.

This code of ethics does not apply to employees, including those individuals employed on a full-time,

part-time or internship basis (including those who may serve on a city board, committee or

commission) nor to independent contractors of the city. The standards of conduct for employees are

governed by the City of Richardson Personnel Policies and the City Charter.

This code of ethics applies to members of all city boards, committees or commissions as de�ned in this

article.

This code of ethics applies to the conduct or actions of public o�cers, as de�ned in this article which

occurs in whole or in part after the date of adoption of this article.

This code of ethics applies to o�cers only while such persons hold such position or o�ce.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-3. - De�nitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to

them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a di�erent meaning:



3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 2/8

Bene�t means anything reasonably regarded as pecuniary or economic gain or pecuniary or economic

advantage, including bene�t to any other person in whose welfare the bene�ciary has a direct and

substantial interest.

Business entity means any person, entity, corporation (whether for-pro�t or nonpro�t), general or

limited partnership, sole proprietorship, joint venture, unincorporated association or �rm, institution, trust,

foundation, holding company, joint-stock company, receivership, or other entity recognized by law, whether

or not organized for pro�t, which has an economic interest, or seeking such, in conducting business with

the city. Business entity also includes any business entity that represents a party conducting or seeking to

conduct business with the city.

City means the City of Richardson, Texas.

City council means the governing body of the city.

Con�dential information means any information to which an o�cial has access in such person's o�cial

capacity which may not be disclosed to the public except pursuant to state and/or federal law and which is

not otherwise a matter of public record or public knowledge. Con�dential information includes the

following information, however transmitted: (i) any information from a meeting closed to the public

pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act or other law regardless of whether disclosure violates the Texas

Open Meetings Act or Texas Public Information Act; (ii) any information protected by attorney client,

attorney work product, or other applicable legal privilege; and (iii) any information deemed con�dential by

law.

Contract means any lease, claim, account or demand against or agreement with any entity or person,

whether express or implied, executed or executory, oral or written.

Corporation means any corporation that has a board of directors appointed in whole or in part by the

city council that is operating under the direct authority of or subject to the direct control of the city council.

Employee means any person employed by the city, including those individuals on a part-time or

internship basis, but does not include independent contractors.

Gift means anything of value, regardless of form, o�ered or given in the absence of adequate and

lawful consideration. It does not include the receipt or acceptance of campaign contributions which are

regulated by federal, state and/or local laws or ordinances.

Knowingly means a person acts knowingly, or with knowledge, with respect to the nature of the

person's conduct or to circumstances surrounding the conduct when the person is aware of the nature of

the conduct or that the circumstances exist. A person acts knowingly, or with knowledge, with respect to a

result of the person's conduct whether the person is aware that the conduct is reasonably certain to cause

the result.



3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 3/8

(a)

O�cer or o�cial means any member of the city council and any appointed member of a city board,

commission or committee established by ordinance, Charter, state law or otherwise, on a temporary or

permanent basis, operating either under the direct or indirect authority or subject to either the direct or

indirect control of the city council. Such term includes but is not limited to the members of the city plan

commission, the board of adjustment, the building and standards commission, the tax increment

reinvestment �nancing zone boards of directors, the civil service board and appeals board, the library

board, the parks and recreation board, the arts commission, animal shelter advisory board, the

environmental advisory commission. Such term also includes the members of the boards of directors of

corporations, such as the Richardson Improvement Corporation.

Relative means any person related to an o�cer within the second degree by consanguinity or a�nity.

This relationship includes the spouse, parents, children, stepchildren, father and mother-in-law, or son and

daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, sisters and brothers of the o�cer.

Special privileges means a right, advantage or favor of or for a particular person, occasion or purpose

not otherwise available to others.

Substantial interest means: (i) the ownership of ten percent or more of the voting stock or shares of a

business entity; (ii) the ownership of ten percent or more, or $15,000.00 or more of the fair market value of

a business entity; or (iii) funds received from the business entity exceed ten percent of the person's gross

income for the previous year, and action on the matter involving the business entity will have a special

economic e�ect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the e�ect on the public. It is expressly

provided herein that an investment or ownership in a publicly held company, in an amount less than

$15,000.00 does not constitute a substantial interest. Substantial interest in real property means the person

has an interest in the real property that is equitable or legal ownership with a fair market value of $2,500.00

or more; and it is reasonably foreseeable that an action on a matter involving the real property will have a

special economic e�ect on the value of the real property distinguishable from its e�ect on the public.

(Ownership includes any partnership, joint or corporate ownership or any equitable or bene�cial interest as

a bene�ciary of a trust.) An o�cer is considered to have a substantial interest under this code of ethics if a

person related to the o�cer in the second degree of consanguinity or a�nity has a substantial interest

under this code of ethics.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-4. - Standards of conduct.

No o�cer of the city or a relative thereof shall:

Have a �nancial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract with the city, nor shall such person be

�nancially interested, directly or indirectly, in the sale to the city of any land, or rights or interest in

any land, materials, supplies or service. The "�nancial interest" contemplated under this section



3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 4/8

(1)

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

and under the City Charter section 21.01 requires that such person receive an actual �nancial

bene�t from the transaction with the city. An actual �nancial bene�t from the transaction shall

include:

An ownership in the entity transacting business with the city where the ownership interest is

more than ten percent.

Compensation as an employee, o�cer or director of the entity transacting business with the

city where such compensation is a�ected by the entity's transaction with the city.

Participate in a vote or decision on any matter in which the o�cer has a substantial interest.

Represent or appear in behalf of private interests of others before the city council, or any agency,

board, commission, corporation, or committee of the city, nor shall represent any private interests

of others in any action or proceeding involving the city, nor voluntarily participate on behalf of

others in any litigation to which the city is, or might be, an adverse party. The restrictions of this

subsection 2-4(c) do not prohibit an o�cer, or relative of an o�cer, who is the president, vice

president or o�cer of a homeowner's association from appearing before the city council, or any

agency, board, commission, or committee of the city to represent such homeowner's association,

except that no such o�cer or relative of such o�cer shall appear before the agency, board,

commission or committee of the city of which such o�cer is a member.

Accept any gift from any person that might reasonably tend to in�uence such o�cer in the

discharge of such person's o�cial duties. The prohibition against gifts shall not apply to:

A lawful campaign contribution;

An honorarium in consideration for services unless the o�cer would not have been asked to

provide the services but for the o�cer's position;

Meals, lodging, transportation in connection with services rendered by the o�cer at a

conference, seminar or similar event that is more than merely perfunctory;

Complimentary copies of trade publications and other related materials;

Attendance at hospitality functions at local, regional, state or national association meetings

and/or conferences;

Any gift which would have been o�ered or given to the person if such person was not an

o�cer or employee of the city;

An occasional item with a value less than $50.00;

Tee shirts, caps and other similar promotional material;

Meals, transportation and lodging in connection with a seminar or conference at which the

o�cer is providing services;

Gifts on account of kinship or a personal, or professional, or business relationship

independent of the o�cer's status;

Complimentary attendance at political or charitable fundraising events; and

https://www.municode.com/library/


3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 5/8

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Meals, lodging, transportation, or entertainment furnished in connection with public events,

appearances or ceremonies related to o�cial city business, if furnished by the sponsor of such

public events.

Use such person's o�cial position to secure special privileges or bene�ts for such person or

others.

Grant any special consideration, treatment or advantage to any citizen, individual, business

organization or group beyond that which is normally available to every other citizen, individual,

business organization or group.

Disclose con�dential information.

Engage in any outside activities which will con�ict with or will be incompatible with such person's

o�cial position or duties as an o�cer of the city.

Use city supplies, personnel, property, equipment or facilities (whether tangible or intangible) for

any purpose other than the conduct of o�cial city business, unless otherwise provided for by law,

ordinance or city policy.

Act as a surety on any o�cial bond required for any o�cer or employee of the city, or for a

business that has a contract, work or business with the city.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-5. - Additional standards.

No member of the city council who is on the board of a nonpro�t organization may vote on any funding

request by that nonpro�t organization, unless the nonpro�t organization has a board of directors or

trustees appointed in whole or in part by the city council.

With the exception of those proceedings allowed under this article, no member of the city council shall

personally appear in such person's own behalf before the city council, or any city board, commission,

corporation or committee but may designate and be represented by a person of such person's choice

in any such personal matter.

No member of the city council, the city plan commission, or board of adjustment shall participate in, or

vote on, any land use matter in which such o�cer has a substantial interest in any real property within

200 feet of the real property, the subject of the land use matter. For purposes of this subsection 2-5(c)

"land use matter" shall mean zoning, plat approval, site plan or other development approvals or

permits, variances or exceptions. The term "land use matter" does not include studies or similar

matters that are for the bene�t of the city and which are not unique to real property within 200 feet of

the real property, the subject of the land use matter, in which the o�cer has a substantial interest.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-6. - Disclosure of substantial interest.

https://www.municode.com/library/


3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 6/8

(a)

(b)

(c)

Any o�cer, who has a substantial interest in any matter pending before the body, board, commission,

corporation or committee of which the o�cer is a member, before a vote or decision on such matter, shall

�le an a�davit stating the nature and extent of the substantial interest, and shall abstain from further

participation in such matter. The a�davit shall be on a form provided by the city and must be �led with

record keeper for such body, board, commission, corporation or committee.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-7. - Complaints against o�cers.

All complaints or allegations of a violation of this code of ethics against an o�cer shall be made in

writing on a form provided by the city, sworn to before a notary public, and �led of record with the city

secretary. Such complaint shall describe in detail the act or acts complained of and the speci�c

section(s) of this code of ethics alleged to have been violated. A general complaint lacking in detail shall

not be su�cient to invoke the investigation procedures contained herein; and anonymous complaints

shall not be considered. The city secretary shall provide a copy of the complaint to the a�ected o�cer

and the city council, and immediately refer the complaint to the city attorney, who shall initially review

the complaint to determine if the complaint contains su�cient detail and alleges a violation of the code

of ethics. The a�ected o�cer may �le a written response to the complaint within seven business days

after the complaint is �led with the city secretary, who shall forward the response, if any, to the city

attorney.

The city attorney shall submit a written report to the city council as soon as possible but not later than

15 business days after the receipt of the complaint, unless an extension is granted by a majority of the

non-implicated city council members. The city attorney may contact the complainant, interview

witnesses and examine any documents necessary for the report. Such report shall be comprehensive

and explain in detail all facts, �ndings, and conclusions in support of the city attorney's opinion as to

whether or not a violation of this code of ethics occurred. When the city attorney receives a vague

complaint or one lacking in detail, the city attorney shall contact the complainant to request a written

clari�cation. If the complainant fails to provide the city attorney with written clari�cation, or if after

written clari�cation is provided, it is the opinion of the city attorney that the complaint is insu�cient in

detail and/or fails to allege a prima facie violation of the code of ethics, a written report to that e�ect

shall be submitted to the city council. If the city attorney determines that a criminal violation may exist,

the city attorney shall refer the matter to the appropriate law enforcement agency.

If it is determined by the city attorney that the facts as alleged could constitute a violation of this code

of ethics, then the city attorney shall, within 15 business days after receipt of the complaint, notify the

mayor and city council members of the existence and nature of the complaint. The city council shall

cause a meeting to convene, whether regular or special, within 15 business days after being so noti�ed

by the city attorney to further consider said complaint in executive session with mayor or any three

members of the city council (excluding the mayor) causing such a meeting to be convened. In any event,



3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 7/8

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(1)

(2)

(3)

the city attorney shall immediately proceed to fully investigate the alleged improprieties. For purposes

of this investigation, the city attorney shall have all of the powers of investigation as are given to the city

council by reason of the City Charter and shall report back to the city council as soon as possible but in

no event more than 15 business days from the date of noti�cation of the city council unless an

extension is granted by the city council. Said report shall be comprehensive and explain in detail all

facts, �ndings and conclusions in support of the city attorney's opinion as to whether a violation of this

code of ethics occurred.

The city council shall consider the complaint and the city attorney's report at an executive session of

the city council. The a�ected o�cer may request that the complaint be considered in a public meeting.

At such meeting, the city attorney shall present a written report to the city council describing in detail

the nature of the complaint and the city attorney's �ndings and conclusions as to a possible violation of

this code of ethics. The a�ected o�cer shall have the right to a full and complete hearing before the city

council with the opportunity to call and cross-examine witnesses and present evidence in such person's

behalf. The non-implicated city council members in attendance shall conduct a hearing and review the

complaint. The city council may reject the complaint or take action authorized under section 2-8,

violations.

No action or decision with regard to the complaint shall be made except in a meeting which is open to

the public.

The city council may appoint outside legal counsel, or may direct the city attorney to appoint outside

legal counsel, or the city attorney in the city attorney's discretion, may appoint outside legal counsel, to

perform the duties and responsibilities of the city attorney under subsections (b), (c) and (d) of this

section.

A complaint or allegation of a violation of this article may only be made against an o�cer while such

person holds such position or o�ce. A complaint made against an o�cer pursuant to this section shall

be processed and resolved even if such person resigns from, or ceases to hold such position or o�ce,

prior to resolution of the complaint.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-8. - Violations.

The city council may take any one or more of the following actions in an open meeting concerning a

complaint:

Issue a statement �nding the complaint is totally without merit, brought for the purpose of

harassment, or brought in bad faith.

Issue a letter of noti�cation when the violation is unintentional. A letter of noti�cation shall advise

the o�cer of any steps to be taken to avoid future violations.

Issue a letter of admonition when the violation is minor or may have been unintentional, but calls

for a more substantial response than a letter of noti�cation.

https://www.municode.com/library/


3/15/2017 Richardson, TX Code of Ordinances

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/richardson/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTICOET_S22TIAP 8/8

(4)

(5)

(6)

Issue a reprimand when a violation has been committed knowingly or intentionally.

Remove from o�ce an o�cer, other than a city council member, for a serious or repeated violation

of this code of ethics. Removal shall be, to the extent by and allowed, in compliance with the

Charter and state law.

Pass a resolution of censure or a recommendation of recall when the city council �nds that a

serious or repeated violation of this code of ethics has been committed intentionally by a member

of the city council.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-9. - Interpretation of content.

Any o�cer may request and the city attorney shall issue, a verbal or written opinion (as deemed

appropriate) concerning the meaning or e�ect of any section, word, or requirement of this code of ethics as

it a�ects such person.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Sec. 2-10. - Review.

The city council shall review this article once every two years following its adoption on September 27,

2010.

(Ord. No. 3785, § 1, 9-27-10)

Secs. 2-11—2-25. - Reserved.


	Agenda
	1._Executive Session
	2._Reconvene
	3._Midway Road Update
	4._Present And Discuss An Update Regarding The Les Lacs Lake Edge Project
	5._Town Meeting Logistics
	7._Legacy Foundation
	8._Minutes
	Att1_DRAFT Minutes
	9._Mayor Austin
	10._Final Payment for Les Lacs Water Well Rebuilding Project
	Att1_Final Pay Application
	11._Midway Road CCTV Change Order
	Att1_Change Order _1 - CCTV Investigation
	COR Form
	Contract Amendment 031417

	12._Addison Police Department's 2016 Racial Profiling Report
	Att1_2016 Racial Profiling Report
	13._2016 Annual Report
	Att1_2016 Annual Report - Police
	Annual Report 2016 VER 4
	libertycompany (4)

	14._Water Master Plan - CIP Design Projects FY17
	Att1_Map of Location of Projects
	Att2_CIP Projects List
	Att3_Resolution with Exhibits
	15._Present, Discuss, And Consider Action On Site Selection For A New Playground
	Att1_Playground Site Inventory and Analysis Presentation
	16._Resolution Authorizing The City Manager to Enter Into a Grant Funding Agreement
	Att1_Resolution with Amended Agreement Exhibit
	Att2_Original Funding Agreement- Addison Arbor Foundation
	Att3_Redline- Addison Arbor Funding Agreement 
	17._PEG Channel
	18._5015 Spectrum Drive Update
	Att1_5015 Spectrum Drive - Summary of Environment Reports
	Att2_5015 Spectrum Drive - Certificate of Completion
	Att3_5015 Spectrum Drive - Phase II Environmental Investigation
	19._Environmental Testing Strategic Planning
	20._Transparency Review
	Att1_Outline for discussion as provided by Mayor Meier
	21._Ethics Guidelines and Need for Process and Sanctions
	Att1_City of Richardson Code of Ethics

